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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

x Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2013

or

o Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from                                                                 to                      

Commission File Number 001-33695

Andalay Solar, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 90-0181035
(State or other jurisdiction of
incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

1475 S. Bascom Ave. Suite 101, Campbell, CA 95008
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(408) 402-9400
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes x    No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to submit and post such files).  Yes x    No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer  o Accelerated filer  o
Non-accelerated filer  o (Do not check if a smaller reporting

company)
Smaller reporting company  x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).  Yes
o    No x
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As of November 6, 2013, 102,044,402 shares of the issuer’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share, were
outstanding (including non-vested restricted shares).
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.

Andalay Solar, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

September
30,
2013

December 31,
2012

Assets
Current assets:
Cash $379,476 $ 127,385
Accounts receivable, net 33,779 365,845
Other receivables 42 121,990
Inventory, net 1,056,941 995,713
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 223,352 420,108
Assets of discontinued operations — 10,896
Total current assets 1,693,590 2,041,937
Property and equipment, net 19,094 46,877
Patents, net 1,273,813 1,329,046
Other assets, net 156,067 183,258
Assets of discontinued operations – long-term 200,000 200,000
Total assets $3,342,564 $ 3,801,118

Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ (Deficit)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $4,305,865 $ 3,329,537
Accrued liabilities 67,853 488,956
Accrued warranty 331,390 329,680
Common stock warrant liability — 9
Credit facility 350,000 —
Capital lease obligations – current portion 1,288 4,385
Liabilities of discontinued operations 990,933 1,052,819
Total current liabilities 6,047,329 5,205,386

Capital lease obligations, less current portion — 328
Convertible note – long term 201,363 —
Total liabilities 6,248,692 5,205,714

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)

Series C convertible redeemable preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 97 and 800 shares
issued and outstanding on September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively 180,468 983,747

Series D convertible redeemable preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 950 and 0 shares
issued and outstanding on September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively 1,024,952 —

Stockholders’ deficit:
Series B convertible redeemable preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 823 and 2,243
shares issued and outstanding on September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012,

265,362 741,171
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respectively
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 500,000,000 shares authorized; 91,931,852 and
26,924,643 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012, respectively (Note 1) 91,932 26,925
Additional paid-in capital 78,298,140 76,455,054
Accumulated deficit (82,766,982) (79,611,493 )
Total stockholders’ deficit (4,111,548 ) (2,388,343 )
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit $3,342,564 $ 3,801,118

 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Andalay Solar, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended 
September 30,

Nine Months Ended 
September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012

Net revenue $156,630 $838,446 $367,870 $4,469,997
Cost of goods sold 167,891 1,063,538 407,359 4,486,541
        Gross loss (11,261 ) (225,092 ) (39,489 ) (16,544 )
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing 201,590 536,463 804,048 1,627,166
General and administrative 595,241 1,458,468 1,816,338 5,185,762
Total operating expenses 796,831 1,994,931 2,620,386 6,812,928
Loss from continuing operations (808,092 ) (2,220,023 ) (2,659,875 ) (6,829,472 )
Other income (expense)
Interest income (expense), net (1,367 ) (36,433 ) (6,730 ) (71,219 )
Adjustment to the fair value of common stock warrants — 8,972 9 (417,668 )
Other income — — 420,000 —
Total other income (expense), net (1,367 ) (27,461 ) 413,279 (488,887 )
Loss before provision for income taxes and discontinued
operations (809,459 ) (2,247,484 ) (2,246,596 ) (7,318,359 )
Provision for income taxes — — — —
Net loss from continuing operations (809,459 ) (2,247,484 ) (2,246,596 ) (7,318,359 )
Net income from discontinued operations, net of tax
(Note 3) 3,200 8,932 10,797 31,905
Net loss (806,259 ) (2,238,552 ) (2,235,799 ) (7,286,454 )
Preferred stock dividend (28,980 ) (75,331 ) (124,509 ) (117,618 )
Preferred deemed dividend (501,304 ) — (875,304 ) —
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $(1,336,543 ) $(2,313,883 ) $(3,235,612 ) $(7,404,072 )

Net loss attributable to common stockholders per
common and common equivalent share (basic and
diluted) $(0.02 ) $(0.11 ) $(0.06 ) $(0.40 )

Weighted average shares used in computing loss per
common share: (basic and diluted) 81,746,372 19,883,887 56,695,767 18,163,851

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Andalay Solar, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Deficit

(Unaudited)

Series C
Convertible
Redeemable

Preferred Stock

Series D
Convertible
Redeemable

Preferred Stock

Series B
Convertible
Redeemable

Preferred Stock Common Stock

Number
of Shares Amount

Number
of Shares Amount

Number
of Shares Amount

Number
of Shares Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Stockholders'
Equity
(Deficit)

Balance at
January 1,
2013 800 $983,747 — $— 2,243 $741,171 26,924,643 $26,925 $76,455,054 $(79,611,493) $(2,388,343)
I s s u anc e  o f
S e r i e s  C
conve r t i b l e
r e d e emab l e
p r e f e r r e d
stock for cash 75 75,000 — — — — — — — — —
Issuanc e  o f
S e r i e s  D
conve r t i b l e
r e d e emab l e
p r e f e r r e d
stock for cash,
net — — 950 475,000 — — — — — — —
R e t u r n  o f
S e r i e s  D
conve r t i b l e
r e d e emab l e
p r e f e r r e d
stock — — (200) (80,123 ) — — — — — 80,123 80,123
I s s u anc e  o f
S e r i e s  D
conve r t i b l e
r e d e emab l e
p r e f e r r e d
s t o c k
for  payment
o f  f inanc ia l
advisor fees — — 230 210,000 — — — — — — —
Preferred
deemed
dividend — 410,227 — 465,077 — — — — — (875,304 ) (875,304 )
Conversion of
S e r i e s  B

— — — — (1,420) (475,809) 42,277,814 42,278 433,531 — —
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Conver t ib le
Redeemable
p r e f e r r e d
s t o c k  t o
common stock
Conversion of
S e r i e s  C
Conver t ib le
Redeemable
p r e f e r r e d
s t o c k  t o
common stock (778) (1,288,506) — — — — 17,977,766 17,978 1,270,528 — 1,288,506
Conversion of
S e r i e s  D
Conver t ib le
Redeemable
p r e f e r r e d
s t o c k  t o
common stock — — (30 ) (45,002 ) — — 1,500,000 1,500 43,502 — 45,002
Conver t ib le
Redeemable
P r e f e r r e d
S t o c k
dividends paid
i n  c ommo n
stock — — — — — — 3,276,647 3,277 121,232 (124,509 ) —
P l a c e m e n t
a g e n t  a n d
reg i s t r a t i on
fees and other
direct costs — — — — — — — — (55,919 ) — (55,919 )
G r a n t s  o f
r e s t r i c t e d
stock, net of
forfeitures and
upon exercise
or expiration
of warrants — — — — — — (25,018 ) (26 ) (276 ) — (302 )
Stock-based
compensation — — — — — — — — 30,488 30,488
Net loss — — — — — — — — — (2,235,799 ) (2,235,799)
Balance at
September 30,
2013 97 $180,468 950 $1,024,952 823 $265,362 91,931,852 $91,932 $78,298,140 $(82,766,982) $(4,111,548)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

4

Edgar Filing: Andalay Solar, Inc. - Form 10-Q

10



Table of Contents

 Andalay Solar, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

 (Unaudited)
 Nine

Months Ended September
30,

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $(2,235,799) $(7,286,454)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operations:
Depreciation 27,784 120,345
Amortization 83,969 39,844
Bad debt expense 89,325 476,258
Inventory impairment — 271,269
Unrealized (gain) loss on fair value adjustment of common stock warrants (9 ) 417,668
Non-cash stock-based compensation expense 30,488 570,402
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 242,741 710,603
Other receivables 121,948 1,816
Inventory (61,228 ) 2,335,640
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 196,756 482,851
Assets of discontinued operations – short term 10,895 76,203
Assets held for sale — 2,723
Other assets (1,546 ) (637,054 )
Assets of discontinued operations – long-term — 9,913
Accounts payable 1,186,329 452,710
Accrued liabilities and accrued warranty (419,393 ) 544,003
Liabilities of discontinued operations (61,886 ) (233,061 )
Net cash used in operating activities (789,626 ) (1,644,321)
Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowing on convertible note payable 201,363 —
Repayment notes payable — (283,252 )
Borrowing (repayment) on line of credit 350,000 (39,473 )
Repayments on capital lease obligations (3,425 ) (3,502 )
Proceeds from redeemable preferred stock offering 550,000 —
Proceeds from securities purchase agreement — 500,000
Proceeds from exercise of warrants — 283,334
Payment of placement agent and registration fees and other direct costs (55,919 ) (90,754 )
Employee taxes paid for vesting of restricted stock (302 ) (12,535 )
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,041,717 353,818
Net increase (decrease) in cash 252,091 (1,290,503)
Cash
Beginning of period 127,385 1,346,777
End of period $379,476 $56,274

Supplemental cash flows disclosures:
Cash paid during the period for interest $6,759 $20,812
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activity:
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock $1,809,317 $—

Edgar Filing: Andalay Solar, Inc. - Form 10-Q

11



Conversion of common stock warrant liability upon exercise of warrants $— $252,765
Return of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock $80,123 $—
Reclassification of common stock liability upon modification of warrants $— $481,242
Preferred deemed dividend $875,304 $—
Preferred stock dividends paid in common stock $124,509 $117,618
Stock issued in satisfaction of accounts payable to investor supplier $— $1,045,000
Stock issued to procure inventory $— $97,800
Preferred stock issued for payment of financial advisor fees $210,000 $—
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Andalay Solar, Inc.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation and Description of Business

Basis of Presentation — Interim Financial Information

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements are unaudited and have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information. They should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements and related notes to the financial statements of Andalay Solar, Inc. (“we”, “us”, “our” or the
“Company”), formerly Westinghouse Solar, Inc. and Akeena Solar, Inc., for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 appearing in our Form 10-K. The September 30, 2013 unaudited interim consolidated financial statements
included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q have been prepared in accordance with the rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Certain information and note disclosures normally included in
annual financial statements filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K have been condensed or omitted as permitted
by those rules and regulations. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring accruals,
necessary for a fair statement of the results of operations for the interim periods presented have been reflected herein.
The results of operations for interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the entire
year.

Description of Business

We are a designer and manufacturer of solar power systems and solar panels with integrated microinverters (which we
call AC solar panels). We design, market and sell these solar power systems to solar installers and do-it-yourself
customers through distribution partnerships, our dealer network and retail outlets. Our products are designed for use in
solar power systems for residential and commercial rooftop customers. Prior to September 2010, we were also in the
solar power installation business.

We were incorporated in February 2001 as Akeena Solar, Inc. in the State of California and elected at that time to be
taxed as an S corporation. During June 2006, we reincorporated in the State of Delaware and became a C corporation.
On August 11, 2006, we entered into a reverse merger transaction with Fairview Energy Corporation, Inc. (“Fairview”).
Pursuant to the Merger, the stockholders of the Company received one share of Fairview common stock for each
issued and outstanding share of The Company’s common stock. The Company’s common shares were also adjusted
from $0.01 par value to $0.001 par value at the time of the Merger. On May 17, 2010, we entered into an exclusive
worldwide license agreement with Westinghouse, Inc, which permitted us to manufacture, distribute and market solar
panels under the Westinghouse name and in connection therewith, on April 6, 2011, we changed our name to
Westinghouse Solar, Inc. On August 23, 2013, the license agreement with Westinghouse, Inc. was terminated and on
September 19, 2013, we changed our name to our current name, Andalay Solar, Inc.

On May 7, 2012, we entered into a merger agreement with CBD Energy Limited, an Australian corporation (“CBD”).
We had originally targeted completion of the merger during the third quarter of 2012, however the target date for
completion had been repeatedly delayed, and the necessary registration statement had yet to be completed and filed.
The uncertainty resulted in a disruption in our supply relationships, leading to a significant decline in our revenue and
the implementation of significant cost reductions including the layoff of employees during the time we pursued the
merger. Given the continued delays and uncertainty of whether and when the closing conditions for the merger as set
for in the merger agreement will be satisfied, we terminated the merger agreement with CBD effective July 18,
2013. We are now committed to focus our attention on rebuilding our core business, expanding our current product
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offerings and exploring strategic opportunities.

Our Corporate headquarters is located at 1475 S. Bascom Ave., Campbell, CA 95008. Our telephone number is (408)
402-9400. Additional information about Andalay Solar is available on our website at http://www.Andalaysolar.com.
The information on our web site is not incorporated herein by reference.

6
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2. Significant Accounting Policies

Liquidity and Financial Position

We currently face challenges meeting the working capital needs of our business. Our primary requirements for
working capital are to fund purchases for solar panels and microinverters, and to cover our payroll and lease expenses.
For each quarter in 2013 and for each of the two years in the period ending December 31, 2012, we have incurred net
losses and negative cash flows from operations. During the recent years, we have undertaken several equity and debt
financing transactions to provide the capital needed to sustain our business. We have dramatically reduced our
headcount and other variable expenses. In addition, we expect to incur a net loss from operations for the year ending
December 31, 2013. As of September 30, 2013, we had approximately $379,000 in cash on hand.  Based on current
cash projections for the remainder of 2013, we intend to address ongoing working capital needs through liquidation of
remaining inventory, along with raising additional debt and equity financing.  In January 2013, our board of directors
approved actions to dramatically reduce our variable operating costs, including a 12 person employee headcount
reduction effective January 15, 2013, for the period through the anticipated merger closing with CBD, which merger
was terminated in July 2013. No restructuring charges or severance payments were incurred.  Our revenue levels
remain difficult to predict, and we anticipate that we will continue to sustain losses in the near term, and we cannot
assure investors that we will be successful in reaching break-even.

During 2012, because of our cash position and liquidity constraints, we were late in making payments to both of our
former panel suppliers, Suntech and Lightway. We currently have no unshipped orders from these suppliers. In May
2013, we entered into a new supply agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Environmental
Engineering Group Pty Ltd (“EEG”), an assembler of polycrystalline modules located in Australia. In August 2013, we
began receiving product from EEG and began shipping product to customers during the third calendar quarter of this
year. We anticipate increased shipments to customers during the fourth quarter of 2013. We have remaining panel
inventory on hand as of September 30, 2013 and anticipate receiving a final shipment of product in November 2013,
fulfilling our purchase order with EEG. In September 2013, we entered into a second supply agreement for assembly
of our proprietary modules with Tianwei New Energy Co, Ltd., a panel supplier located in China. We anticipate
beginning to receive product from this new supplier beginning in the first quarter of 2014. Although we believe we
can find alternative suppliers for solar panels manufactured to our specifications, our operations would be disrupted
unless we are able to rapidly secure alternative sources of supply, our inventory and revenue could diminish
significantly, causing disruption to our operations.

On August 30, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional accredited investors
relating to the sale and issuance of a convertible note in the principal amount of $200,000 that matures August 29,
2015 (the "Convertible Note").  The Convertible Note bears interest at the rate of 8% per annum compounded
annually, is payable at maturity and the principal and interest outstanding under the Convertible Note are convertible
into shares of our common stock, at any time after issuance, at the option of the purchaser, at a conversion price equal
to $.02, subject to adjustment upon the happening of certain events, including stock dividends, stock splits and the
issuance of common stock equivalents at a price below the conversion price. Subject to our fulfilling certain
conditions, including beneficial ownership limits, the Convertible Note is subject to a mandatory conversion if the
closing price of our common stock for any 20 consecutive days commencing six months after the issue date of the
Convertible Note equals or exceeds $0.04. Unless waived in writing by the purchaser, no conversion of the
Convertible Note can be effected to the extent that as a result of such conversion the purchaser would beneficially own
more than 9.99% in the aggregate of our issued and outstanding common stock immediately after giving effect to the
issuance of common stock upon conversion. We have the option of repaying the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Note, in whole or in part, by paying the purchaser a sum of money equal to one hundred and twenty
percent (120%) of the principal together with accrued but unpaid interest upon 30 days notice, subject to certain
beneficial ownership limits. For so long as we have any obligation under the Convertible Note, we have agreed to
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certain restrictions regarding, among other things, incurrence of additional debt, liens, amendments to charter
documents, repurchase of stock, payment of cash dividends, affiliated transactions. We are also prohibited from
entering into certain variable priced agreements until the Convertible Note is repaid in full.

On September 30, 2013, we entered into a loan and security agreement with Alpha Capital Anstalt and Collateral
Services, LLC to provide financing, on a discretionary basis, for one year, against our accounts receivable and
inventory.  The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the Agreement is $500,000. We have the right to
borrow up to 80% of our eligible accounts receivable, not in excess of $200,000, 50% of the value of our raw
materials in inventory, 65% of our finished goods inventory and 95% of cash, but not in the aggregate amount in
excess of $300,000.  The advances are secured by a lien on all of our assets. All advances under the agreement bear
interest at a per annum rate of 12% and monthly interest shall be a minimum of $500. At the time of initial funding we
paid a loan fee of 50 shares of our Series D Preferred Shares to the lender, in addition to other payments for legal fees.
In addition, we paid the collateral agent an initial fee of $5,000 and have agreed to pay an administrative fee to the
collateral agent of 0.5% per month of the daily balance during the preceding month or $500 whichever is less. In the
event of a prepayment, we are obligated to pay a prepayment fee in an amount equal to one-half of one percent (0.5%)
of $500,000. On September 30, 2013, we requested and received an initial borrowing under the Agreement totaling
$350,000. Subsequently, on October 21, 2013, we requested and received an additional $100,000.

7
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming we will continue as a going
concern. Our significant operating losses, negative cash flow from operations, and challenges in rapidly securing
alternative sources of supply for solar panels, raise substantial uncertainty about our ability to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty, and contemplate the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities and commitments in the
normal course of business. There can be no assurance that we will be able to raise additional funds on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all. The current economic downturn adds uncertainty to our anticipated revenue levels and to
the timing of cash receipts, which are needed to support our operations. It also worsens the market conditions for
seeking equity and debt financing. As a result of our delisting from the Nasdaq Capital Market in September 2012, we
are no longer eligible to file new registration statements on Form S-3, which may make it more costly and more
difficult for us to obtain additional equity financing.  We currently anticipate that we will retain all of our earnings, if
any, for development of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on common stock in the
foreseeable future.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales of products is recognized when: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered, (3) the sale price is fixed or determinable, and (4) collection of the related
receivable is reasonably assured. We recognize revenue when the solar power systems are shipped to the customer.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less, when purchased, to be cash
equivalents. We maintain cash and cash equivalents which consist principally of demand deposits with high credit
quality financial institutions. At certain times, such amounts exceed FDIC insurance limits. We have not experienced
any losses on these investments and, as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, there were no cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of trade receivables. We regularly evaluate the collectability of our accounts receivable.
An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for estimated credit losses, and such losses have historically been
minimal and within our expectations. We consider a number of factors when estimating credit losses, including the
aging of a customer’s account, creditworthiness of specific customers, historical trends and other information.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations are presented and accounted for in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) ASC 360, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” (ASC
360). When a qualifying component of the Company is disposed of or has been classified as held for sale, the
operating results of that component are removed from continuing operations for all periods presented and displayed as
discontinued operations if: (a) elimination of the component’s operations and cash flows from the Company’s ongoing
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operations has occurred (or will occur) and (b) significant continuing involvement by the Company in the component’s
operations does not exist after the disposal transaction.

On September 10, 2010, we announced that we were exiting the solar panel installation business. The exit from the
installation business was essentially completed by the end of 2010, other than potential warranty payments related to
past installations. (See “Manufacturer and Installation Warranties”). The exit from the installation business was
therefore classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented under the requirements of ASC 360.

8
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Manufacturer and Installation Warranties

The manufacturer directly warrants the solar panels and inverters for a range from 15 to 25 years. We warrant the
balance of system components of our products against defects in material and workmanship for five years. We assist
our customers in the event of a claim under the manufacturer warranty to replace a defective solar panel or inverter.
The warranty liability for the material and the workmanship of the balance of system components of approximately
$331,000 at September 30, 2013 and $330,000 at December 31, 2012, is included within “Accrued warranty” in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The liability for our manufacturing warranty consists of the following:
September 30,

2013 (Unaudited)
December
31, 2012

Beginning accrued warranty balance $ 329,680 $217,812
Reduction for labor payments and claims made under the warranty (1,700 ) (1,723 )
Accruals related to warranties issued during the period 3,410 113,591
Ending accrued warranty balance $ 331,390 $329,680

We previously recorded a provision for warranty liability related to our discontinued installation operations. We
provided for a 5-year or a 10-year warranty on the installation of a system and all equipment and incidental supplies
other than solar panels and inverters that are covered under the manufacturer warranty. The liability for the installation
warranty of approximately $991,000 at September 30, 2013 and $1 million at December 31, 2012 is included within
“Liabilities of Discontinued Operations” in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets. Defective solar
panels or inverters are covered under the manufacturer warranty. In the event that a panel or inverter needs to be
replaced, we will replace the defective item within the manufacturer’s warranty period (between 5-25 years).

Patent Costs

We capitalize external legal costs and filing fees associated with obtaining or defending our patents. Upon issuance of
new patents or successful defense of existing patents, we amortize these costs using the straight line method over the
shorter of the legal life of the patent or its economic life. We believe the remaining useful life we assign to these
patents, approximately 11.25 years as of September 30, 2013, are reasonable. We periodically review our patents to
determine whether any such cost have been impaired and are no longer being used. To the extent we are no longer
using certain patents, the associated costs will be written off at that time.

Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no material developments or changes to the significant accounting policies discussed in our 2012
Annual Report on Form 10-K or accounting pronouncements issued or adopted, except as described below.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In January 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) ASU No. 2013-01, which is included in ASC
210, “Balance Sheet,” “Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities” (ASU No. 2013-01).
This update clarifies that the scope of ASU 2011-11: “Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities” applies only
to derivatives accounted for under ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging”, included bifurcated embedded derivatives,
repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, and securities lending transactions that are either offset in
accordance with ASC 210-20-45 or ASC 815-10-45 or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement. ASU No. 2013-01 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after
January 1, 2013. Entities should provide the required disclosures retrospectively for all comparative periods presented.
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The adoption of this guidance impacts presentation disclosures only and did  not have an impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operation or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02, which is included in ASC 220, “Comprehensive Income”,
“Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” (“ASU NO. 2013-02”). This
update requires an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income by component. In addition, an entity is required to present, either on the face of the statement
where net income is presented or in the notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income by the respective line items of net income but only if the amount reclassified is required under
U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP) to be reclassified to net income in its entirety in the same
reporting period. For other amounts that are not required under US GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net
income, an entity is required to cross-reference to other disclosures required under US GAAP that provide additional
detail about those amounts. The amendments of ASU No. 2013-02 do not change the current requirements for
reporting net income or other comprehensive income in financial statements. ASU No. 2013-02 is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after December 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted.
The adoption of this guidance impacts presentation disclosures only and did not have an impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operation or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04, which is included in ASC 405, “Liabilities”, “Obligations
Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed at the
Reporting Date”. This update provides guidance for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of obligations
resulting from joint and several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation with the scope of
this guidance is fixed at the reporting date, except for obligations addressed within existing guidance in US GAAP.
Examples of obligations within the scope to ASU No. 2013-04 include debt arrangements, other contractual
obligations, and settled litigation and judicial rulings. ASU No. 2013-04 is effective for fiscal years and interim
periods within those years beginning after December 5, 2013. Entities should provide the required disclosures
retrospectively for all comparative periods presented. The adoption of this guidance impacts presentation disclosures
only and will not have an impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operation or cash flows.
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In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05, which is included in ASC 830, “Foreign Currency Matters”,
“Parent’s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups
of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity” (“ASU 2013-05”). This update resolves the
diversity in practice regarding the release into net income of the cumulative translation adjustment upon derecognition
of a subsidiary or group of assets within a foreign entity. ASU No. 2013-05 is effective for fiscal years and interim
periods within those years beginning after December 5, 2013. ASU No. 2013-05 is not expected to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operation or cash flows.

3. Discontinued Operations

On September 10, 2010, we announced that we were exiting the solar panel installation business and we were
expanding our distribution business to include sales of our Andalay Solar Power Systems directly to dealers in
California. The exit from the installation business was essentially completed by the end of 2010. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, we recorded a gain from discontinued operations of approximately
$11,000 and $32,000, respectively. The assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are presented separately under
the captions “Assets of discontinued operations,” “Liabilities of discontinued operations” and “Long-term liabilities of
discontinued operations,” respectively, in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets at September 30,
2013 and December 31, 2012, and consist of the following:

Assets of discontinued operations:

September
30,
2013

(unaudited)
December
31, 2012

Accounts receivable and other receivables $— $1,340
Prepaid expenses and other current assets — —
Other assets — 9,556
Total current assets of discontinued operations — 10,896
Security deposit – escrow account for installation jobs 200,000 200,000
Total assets of discontinued operations $200,000 $210,896

Liabilities of discontinued operations:

September
30,
2013

(unaudited)
December
31, 2012

Accrued liabilities $— $8,656
Accrued warranty 990,933 1,042,663
Deferred revenue — 1,500
Total current liabilities $990,933 $1,052,819

We entered into a Supply and Warranty Agreement and Master Assignment Agreement with Real Goods Solar, Inc.
(Real Goods), pursuant to which Real Goods has agreed to perform certain warranty work. The terms of the agreement
provide that an escrow account be established as a source of funds from which to satisfy our obligation to pay Real
Goods for its fees and reimburse it for its expenses for this warranty work. In March 2011, we entered into an Escrow
Agreement with Real Goods and deposited $200,000 into an escrow account. The amount is reflected in long-term
assets of discontinued operations in the balance sheet. The escrow deposit will be released to us in the amount of
$40,000, or one-fifth of the remaining escrow funds, per year after each of the fifth through the ninth anniversary of
the escrow agreement.
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4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of the following:
September
30, 2013

(Unaudited)

December
31,
 2012

Trade accounts $ 178,070 $490,401
Less: Allowance for bad debts (142,000 ) (108,750 )
Less: Allowance for returns (2,291 ) (15,806 )

$ 33,779 $365,845

The following table summarizes the allowance for doubtful accounts as of September 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012:

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Provisions,
net

Write-Off/
Recovery

Balance at
End of
Period

Nine months ended September 30, 2013 $108,750 $89,325 $(56,075 ) $142,000
Year ended December 31, 2012 $39,000 $485,072 $(415,322 ) $108,750

10
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5. Inventory

Inventory consists of the following:

September
30,
 2013

December
31,
 2012

Finished goods $950,831 $755,643
Work in process 106,110 240,070

$1,056,941 $995,713

Included in inventory at September 30, 2013 is a $5,000 credit related to a pricing adjustment from a supply
agreement. Included in inventory at December 31, 2012, is an $11,000 credit related to a pricing adjustment from a
supply agreement.

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (on an average basis) or market value. We determine cost based on our
weighted-average purchase price and include both the costs of acquisition and the shipping costs in our inventory. We
regularly review the cost of inventory against its estimated market value and record a lower of cost or market
write-down to cost of goods sold, if any inventory has a cost in excess of estimated market value. During the year
ended December 31, 2012, we recorded a $206,000 non-cash inventory write-down, a $65,000 write-off of
accumulated inventory overhead costs and a $112,000 non-cash inventory write-off. The $206,000 write-down was an
adjustment to the carrying value of our older, smaller-format solar panels and older microinverter inventory to reflect
the decline in market prices compared to our original cost and the $112,000 was an inventory write-off of obsolete
inventory.

6. Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net consist of the following:

September 30,
2013 (Unaudited)

December
31,
 2012

Office equipment $ 522,745 $522,745
Leasehold improvements 148,759 148,759
Vehicles 17,992 17,992

689,496 689,496
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (670,402 ) (642,619 )

$ 19,094 $46,877

Depreciation expense for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $8,000 and
$40,000, respectively. Depreciation expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was
approximately $28,000 and $120,000, respectively.

7. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

September 30,
2013 (Unaudited)

December
31,
 2012

Accrued salaries, wages, benefits and bonus $ 35,293 $65,581
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Sales tax payable — 877
Accrued accounting and legal fees 16,500 5,160
Customer deposit payable — 36,540
Accrued interest — 76,438
Royalty payable — 262,500
Other accrued liabilities 16,060 41,860

$ 67,853 $488,956
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8. Note Payable and Credit Facility

Note payable

On August 30, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional accredited investors
relating to the sale and issuance of a convertible note in the principal amount of $200,000 that matures August 29,
2015 (the "Convertible Note").  The Convertible Note bears interest at the rate of 8% per annum compounded
annually, is payable at maturity and the principal and interest outstanding under the Convertible Note are convertible
into shares of our common stock, at any time after issuance, at the option of the purchaser, at a conversion price equal
to $.02, subject to adjustment upon the happening of certain events, including stock dividends, stock splits and the
issuance of common stock equivalents at a price below the conversion price. Subject to our fulfilling certain
conditions, including beneficial ownership limits, the Convertible Note is subject to a mandatory conversion if the
closing price of our common stock for any 20 consecutive days commencing six months after the issue date of the
Convertible Note equals or exceeds $0.04. Unless waived in writing by the purchaser, no conversion of the
Convertible Note can be effected to the extent that as a result of such conversion the purchaser would beneficially own
more than 9.99% in the aggregate of our issued and outstanding common stock immediately after giving effect to the
issuance of common stock upon conversion.

We have the option of repaying the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Note, in whole or in part, by
paying the purchaser a sum of money equal to one hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the principal together with
accrued but unpaid interest upon 30 days notice, subject to certain beneficial ownership limits. For so long as we
have any obligation under the Convertible Note, we have agreed to certain restrictions regarding, among other things,
incurrence of additional debt, liens, amendments to charter documents, repurchase of stock, payment of cash
dividends, affiliated transactions. We are also prohibited from entering into certain variable priced agreements until
the Convertible Note is repaid in full.

Line of credit

On September 30, 2013, we entered into a loan and security agreement with Alpha Capital Anstalt and Collateral
Services, LLC to provide financing, on a discretionary basis, for one year, against our accounts receivable and
inventory.  The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the Agreement is $500,000. We have the right to
borrow up to 80% of our eligible accounts receivable, not in excess of $200,000, 50% of the value of our raw
materials in inventory, 65% of our finished goods inventory and 95% of cash, but not in the aggregate amount in
excess of $300,000.  The advances are secured by a lien on all of our assets. All advances under the agreement bear
interest at a per annum rate of 12% and monthly interest shall be a minimum of $500. At the time of initial funding we
paid a loan fee of 50 shares of our Series D Preferred Shares to the lender, in addition to other payments for legal fees.
In addition, we paid the collateral agent an initial fee of $5,000 and have agreed to pay an administrative fee to the
collateral agent of 0.5% per month of the daily balance during the preceding month or $500 whichever is less. In the
event that of a prepayment, we are obligated to pay a prepayment fee in an amount equal to one-half of one percent
(0.5%) of $500,000. On September 30, 2013, we requested and received an initial borrowing under the Agreement
totaling $350,000. Subsequently, on October 21, 2013, we requested and received an additional $100,000. The terms
of the convertible note meet the criteria for bifurcation of an embedded derivative, however, the amount of such
embedded derivative was deemed to have a de minimis value.

On February 15, 2011, we entered into a Business Financing Agreement (the "2011 Credit Facility") with Bridge
Bank, National Association (“Bridge Bank”) to finance our accounts receivables. The 2011 Credit Facility provided for
a credit limit of $750,000, representing the maximum amount of advances based on up to 50% of $1.5 million of gross
eligible accounts receivables. The 2011 Credit Facility was terminated on August 16, 2013.
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9. Stockholders’ Equity

We have 501,000,000 shares of capital stock authorized under our certificate of incorporation, consisting of
500,000,000 shares of common stock and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock. As of September 30, 2013, we have
authorized (i) 2,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.001, all of which have been
converted or cancelled and none of which remain outstanding, (ii) 4,000 shares of Series B 4% Convertible Preferred
Stock, par value $0.001, of which 823 shares remain outstanding, (iii) 1,175 shares of our Series C 8% Convertible
Preferred Stock, par value $0.001, of which 97 shares remain outstanding, and (iv) 1,150 shares of our Series D 8%
Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.001, of which 950 shares remain outstanding.

On March 30, 2012, we entered into an amendment to the outstanding Series K warrants which removed the provision
for any future price adjustment to the exercise price. See Note 12 for a discussion on the accounting treatment of these
warrants.

Pursuant to the Lightway Supply Agreement, on March 30, 2012, we issued 1,900,000 shares of our common stock to
Lightway. The shares were issued at $0.55 per share based on the latest closing sale price on the date of issuance. The
issuance of the common stock, valued at $1,045,000, increased equity and reduced accounts payable by an equal
amount.

10. Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock and Preferred Deemed Dividend

On February 17, 2011, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional accredited investors
relating to the sale of 4,000 units at a price of $900 per unit (the “Securities Purchase Agreement”). The aggregate
purchase price for the Securities was $3,600,000, less $532,000 in issuance costs. As of September 30, 2013, 3,177
shares of Series B Preferred stock had been converted into 43,430,415 shares of common stock.

The Certificate of Designation to create the Series B Preferred includes certain negative covenants regarding
indebtedness and other matters, and includes provisions under which the holders of the Series B Preferred are entitled
to demand redemption for cash upon specified triggering events. The Series B Preferred bears dividends at the rate 4%
per year for the first year, and 8% per year thereafter, payable in stock or in cash at our election, subject to certain
restrictions.

On October 18, 2012, we filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware a Certificate of Designation
creating and specifying the rights of our Series C Preferred Stock. The number of shares designated Series C Preferred
Stock is 1,750 (which shall not be subject to increase without the written consent of the holders of a majority of such
series of preferred stock). Each share of Series C Preferred has a par value of $0.001 per share and a stated value equal
to $1,000, subject to increase under certain circumstances. Each share of Series C Preferred is convertible, at any time
at the option of the holder thereof, into shares of our common stock determined by dividing the stated value per share
of our Series C Preferred by the closing price per share of our common stock as reported on the OTCQB Marketplace
(OTCQB) on October 18, 2012, which was $0.155. The conversion price is subject to further adjustments as set forth
in the Series C Certificate of Designation.

The holders of our Series C Preferred are entitled to receive, and we are obligated to pay, cumulative dividends at the
rate per share (as a percentage of the stated value per share) of 8% per annum, payable quarterly on March 31, June
30, September 30 and December 31. Dividends are payable in cash or in shares of newly issued common stock,
depending on whether we have cash available for lawful payment of dividends and whether we satisfy certain
conditions for the alternative to pay the dividends in shares.
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Our Series C Preferred generally is non-voting, provided that our holders of Series C Preferred have rights of approval
with regard to amendments to our Certificate of Incorporation or to the Certificate of Designation that would
adversely affect the rights of our Series C Preferred. Our Series C Preferred provides for a number of negative
covenants applicable to us, including restrictions on the amount of our indebtedness (generally, to an amount not to
exceed $5 million) and related liens, and restrictions on our use of cash to redeem or to pay dividends with respect to
our common stock or other junior securities. In various “triggering event” circumstances set forth in the Series C
Certificate of Designation, the holders of our Series C Preferred have rights to demand the redemption of their shares,
for cash or for shares of our common stock, depending on the nature of the triggering event.

On October 18, 2012, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional accredited investors
relating to the sale and issuance of up to 1,245 shares of our newly created Series C Preferred Stock, for aggregate
proceeds of up to $1,245,000.  At the initial closing, we sold and issued 750 shares of Series C Preferred, for initial
aggregate proceeds of $750,000. On November 2, 2012, we provided to the purchasers of our Series C Preferred Stock
a draw down notice under the Purchase Agreement. As a result of the draw down, we sold an aggregate of 350
additional shares of our Series C Preferred to the purchasers for aggregate proceeds of $350,000.  Based on the closing
price of our common stock as reported on the OTCQB Marketplace (OTCQB) on November 2, 2012 (which was
$0.08 per share), the 350 shares of Series C Preferred issued pursuant to the draw down was convertible into
4,375,000 shares of our common stock. As a result of the contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred,
which reduced the conversion price from $0.155 to $0.08 per share on the total 750 shares of Series C Preferred Stock
issued and outstanding at November 2, 2012, and which resulted in an increase in the number of common shares
issuable, we recognized a preferred deemed dividend of $363,000.
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Effective October 18, 2012, we amended our Series B Certificate of Designation to reduce the “Floor Price” limitation
related to the conversion rights of the Series B Preferred Stock from $0.10 to $0.01 per share.

On January 24, 2013, we provided to the purchasers of our Series C Preferred Stock a draw down notice under the
purchase agreement. The purchasers agreed to accept the new draw down notice and thereby extend our right to
exercise a “put” to sell additional Series C Preferred beyond the securities purchase agreement’s prior expiration date of
December 31, 2012. As a result of the draw down, we sold an aggregate of 75 additional shares of Series C Preferred
to the purchasers for aggregate proceeds of $75,000. Based on the closing price of our common stock as reported on
the OTCQB Marketplace on January 24, 2013 (which was $0.05 per share), the 75 shares of Series C Preferred to be
issued pursuant to the draw down would be convertible into 1,500,000 shares of our common stock. As a result of the
contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred, which reduced the conversion price from $0.08 to $0.05 per
share on the total 720 shares of Series C Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at January 24, 2013, and which
resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we recognized additional preferred deemed
dividends of $270,000.

As a result of the January 24, 2013 draw down notice, pursuant to the terms of the outstanding Series B Preferred
Stock, the conversion price of the Series B Preferred was reduced from $0.08 per share of common stock to become
equal to $0.05, and the conversion price of the Series C Preferred issued under the initial closing was reduced from
$0.08 per share of common stock to become equal to $0.05. As a result of the May 13, 2013 draw down notice, the
price of the Series B Preferred was further reduced from $0.05 per share of common stock to become equal to $0.03,
and the conversion price of the Series C Preferred was also further reduced from $0.05 per share of common stock to
$0.03. As of September 30, 2013, there were 823 shares of Series B Preferred that remain outstanding. With the May
13, 2013 draw down, and after recent conversions of our Series C Preferred, there are 97 shares of Series C Preferred
that remain outstanding. As a result of our August 30, 2013 financing, the conversion price of the Series B Preferred
was further reduced from $0.03 per share of common stock to $0.02 and the conversion price of the Series C Preferred
was also further reduced from $0.03 per share of common stock to $0.02. After adjustment to the conversion prices as
a result of the August 30, 2013 financing, the outstanding Series B Preferred and Series C Preferred would be
convertible into 37,020,234 shares and 4,833,350 shares, respectively, of our common stock.

On February 15, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with an institutional accredited investor
relating to the sale and issuance of up to 1,150 shares of our newly created Series D Preferred Stock at a price per
share equal to the stated value, which is $1,000 per share, for aggregate proceeds of up to $1,000,000. At the initial
closing, concurrent with entering the agreement, we issued 150 shares of Series D Preferred, for initial aggregate
proceeds of $150,000. After the initial closing, the securities purchase agreement permits the purchaser to exercise a
“call” right to purchase additional Series D Preferred in multiple draw downs from time to time until December 31,
2013, subject to certain limits, terms and conditions. In March 2013, the Company and investors entered into a letter
agreement to the securities purchase agreement dated as of February 15, 2013, modifying the number of shares of
Series D Preferred Stock to be issued upon settlement of any purchaser draw downs made on or after March 18, 2013,
equal to the purchaser investment amount divided by the stated value multiplied by a number agreed upon by the
Company and the purchaser, which shall not be higher than 1.67.  Subsequently, on March 21, 2013, we issued 167
shares of Series D Preferred for aggregate proceeds of $100,000. On May 13, 2013, the Company and investors
entered into a letter agreement amendment to the securities purchase agreement dated as of February 15, 2013,
modifying the number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock that may be issued upon draw downs made on or after
May 13, 2013, equal to the purchaser investment amount divided by the stated value multiplied by a number agreed
upon by the Company and the purchaser, which shall not be higher than 3.34. The corresponding conversion price into
underlying shares of our common stock is $0.03 per share. On May 13, 2013, we issued 583 shares of Series D
Preferred to an investor for aggregate proceeds of $175,000. As a result of the contingent conversion feature on the
Series C Preferred, which reduced the conversion price from $0.05 to $0.03 per share on the total 260 shares of Series
C Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at May 13, 2013, and which resulted in an increase in the number of

Edgar Filing: Andalay Solar, Inc. - Form 10-Q

29



common shares issuable, we recognized additional preferred deemed dividends of $104,000. On August 30, 2013, we
entered into an agreement to sell $200,000 in convertible notes. As a result of the sale of these convertible notes and
as a result of the contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred and Series D Preferred, which reduced the
conversion price from $0.03 to $0.02 per share on the Series C and from $0.10 to $0.02 per share on the Series D on
the total 147 shares and 930 shares, respectively, of Series C Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock issued and
outstanding at August 30, 2013, and which resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we
recognized additional preferred deemed dividends of $36,000 on the Series C Preferred Stock and $465,000 on the
Series D Preferred Stock. The net loss attributable to common shareholders reflects both the net loss and the deemed
dividend. As a result of the $500,000 loan and security agreement entered into on September 30, 2013, we issued to
the lender 50 shares of our Series D Preferred stock for the $50,000 loan origination fee.

See Note 12 for a discussion of the accounting treatment of the stock warrant transactions described above.
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11. Stock Option Plan and Stock Incentive Plan

On August 8, 2006, we adopted the Akeena Solar, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Plan”) pursuant to which
shares of common stock are available for issuance to employees, directors and consultants under the Stock Plan as
restricted stock and/or options to purchase common stock. The Stock Plan allows for issuance of up to 50,000,000
shares and there were 48,102,924 shares available for issuance under the Stock Plan as of September 30, 2013.

Restricted stock and options to purchase common stock may be issued under the Stock Plan. The restriction period on
restricted stock grants generally expires at a rate of 25% per year over four years, unless decided otherwise by our
Compensation Committee. Options to purchase common stock generally vest and become exercisable as to one-third
of the total amount of shares subject to the option on each of the first, second and third anniversaries from the date of
grant. Options to purchase common stock generally have a 5-year term.

We use the Black-Scholes-Merton Options Pricing Model (Black-Scholes) to estimate fair value of our employee and
our non-employee director stock-based awards. Black-Scholes requires various judgmental assumptions, including
estimating stock price volatility, expected option life and forfeiture rates. If we had made different assumptions, the
amount of our deferred stock-based compensation, stock-based compensation expense, gross margin, net loss and net
loss per share amounts could have been significantly different. We believe that we have used reasonable
methodologies, approaches and assumptions to determine the fair value of our common stock, and that our deferred
stock-based compensation and related amortization were recorded properly for accounting purposes. If any of the
assumptions we used change significantly, stock-based compensation expense may differ materially in the future from
that recorded in the current period.

We measure compensation expense for non-employee stock-based compensation under Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 505-50, “Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees.” The fair value of the option issued is used to
measure the transaction, as this is more reliable than the fair value of the services received. The estimated fair value is
measured utilizing Black-Scholes using the value of our common stock on the date that the commitment for
performance by the counterparty has been reached or the counterparty’s performance is complete (generally the vesting
date). The fair value of the equity instrument is charged directly to expense and additional paid-in capital.

We recognized stock-based compensation expense of approximately $107,000 and $130,000 during the three months
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and $240,000 and $570,000 during the nine months ended
September 30, 2013, respectively, relating to compensation expense calculated based on the fair value at the time of
grant for restricted stock and based on Black-Scholes for stock options granted under the Stock Plan.

The following table sets forth a summary of restricted stock activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013:

Number of
Restricted
Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Outstanding and not vested beginning balance at January 1, 2013 48,073 $ 2.50
Granted — $ —
Forfeited/cancelled (21,798 ) $ 2.46
Released/vested (9,386 ) $ 2.74
Outstanding and not vested at September 30, 2013 16,889 $ 2.43

Restricted stock is valued at the grant date fair value of the common stock and expensed over the requisite service
period or vesting period. We estimate forfeitures when recognizing stock-based compensation expense for restricted
stock, and the estimate of forfeitures is adjusted over the requisite service period should actual forfeitures differ from

Edgar Filing: Andalay Solar, Inc. - Form 10-Q

31



such estimates. At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, there was approximately $32,000 and $96,000,
respectively, of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense associated with the granted but unvested restricted
stock. Stock-based compensation expense relating to these restricted shares is being recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.2 years. The total fair value of shares vested during the nine months ended September
30, 2013 and 2012, was approximately $700 and $229,000, respectively. Tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in
excess of the compensation cost recognized (excess tax benefits) are classified as financing cash flows on our
consolidated statements of cash flows. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, there
were no excess tax benefits relating to restricted stock and therefore there is no impact on the accompanying
consolidated statements of cash flows.
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The following table sets forth a summary of stock option activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013:

Number of
Shares

Subject to
Option

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 1, 2013 679,744 $ 2.75
Granted — $ —
Forfeited/cancelled/expired (411,040 ) $ 3.00
Exercised — $ —
Outstanding at March 31, 2013 268,704 $ 2.38
Exercisable at March 31, 2013 247,871 $ 2.40

Stock options are valued at the estimated fair value grant date or the measurement date and expensed over the
requisite service period or vesting period. The weighted-average volatility was based upon the historical volatility of
our common stock price. There were no stock options issued during the nine month period ended September 30, 2013.
The fair value of stock option grants during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012
Weighted-average volatility — — — 105.5
Expected dividends — — — 0.0 %
Expected life — — — 2.6 years
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate — — — 0.4 %

The weighted-average remaining contractual term for the stock options outstanding (vested and expected to vest) and
exercisable as of September 30 2013 and December 31, 2012, was 2.4 years and 3.1 years, respectively. The total
estimated fair value of stock options vested during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was
approximately $45,000 and $41,000, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding as of
September 30, 2013 was zero.

We estimate forfeitures when recognizing stock-based compensation expense for stock options and the estimate of
forfeitures is adjusted over the requisite service period should actual forfeitures differ from such estimates. At
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, there was approximately $17,000 and $127,000, respectively, of
unrecognized stock-based compensation expense associated with stock options granted. Stock-based compensation
expense relating to these stock options is being recognized over a weighted-average period of 0.4 years. Tax benefits
resulting from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized (excess tax benefits) is classified as
financing cash flows on our consolidated statements of cash flows. During the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2013, there were no excess tax benefits relating to stock options and therefore there is no impact on the
accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows.
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12. Stock Warrants and Warrant Liability

During March 2009, in connection with an equity financing, we issued Series E Warrants to purchase 334,822 shares
of common stock at an exercise price of $5.36 per share. The fair value of the warrants was estimated using
Black-Scholes with the following weighted average assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 2.69%, an expected life of
five years; an expected volatility factor of 112% and a dividend yield of 0.0%. The value assigned to these warrants
was approximately $1.0 million, of which $1.0 million was reflected as common stock warrant liability with an offset
to additional paid-in capital as of the offering close date. As of March 31, 2013, the fair value of the warrants was
estimated using Black-Scholes with the following weighted average assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 0.7%, an
expected life of 0.9 years; an expected volatility factor of 127.5% and a dividend yield of 0.0%. The fair value of the
warrants decreased to zero as of September 30, 2013 and we recognized a $9 favorable non-cash adjustment from the
change in fair value of these warrants for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

On February 17, 2011, we entered into a securities purchase agreement and issued Series K Warrants to purchase up
to 1,700,002 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per share, which warrants are not exercisable until
six months after issuance and have a term of five and one-half years. The fair value of the warrants was estimated
using Black-Scholes with the following weighted-average assumptions:  risk-free interest rate of 1.4%, an expected
life of 4.1 years; an expected volatility factor of 103.2% and a dividend yield of 0.0%. The estimated value of these
warrants was approximately $2.6 million, of which $2.6 million was reflected as common stock warrant liability with
an offset to preferred stock as of the offering close date. During the quarter ended March 31, 2012, 472,222 Series K
Warrants were exercised at a price of $0.60 and total proceeds of approximately $283,000. As a result of the exercise,
we recognized approximately $253,000 in the change in the estimated value assigned to the warrants as an increase to
equity and a decrease to the warrant liability. On March 30, 2012, we entered into an Amendment to Securities
Purchase Agreement with the holders of the remaining Series K warrants (Series K Amendment) reducing the exercise
price to $0.40 and removing provisions for any future price adjustment to the exercise price. On March 30, 2012, the
fair value of the warrants was estimated using Black-Scholes with the following weighted average assumptions:
risk-free interest rate of 0.5%, an expected life of 3.0 years; an expected volatility factor of 109.3% and a dividend
yield of 0.0%. The fair value of the warrants increased to approximately $481,000 as of March 30, 2012 and we
recognized a $425,000 unfavorable non-cash adjustment from the change in fair value of these warrants for the three
months ended March 31, 2012. As a result of the Series K Amendment, the fair value of the warrants of approximately
$481,000 was reclassified from warrant liability to equity.

As of September 30, 2013, we have 3,398,045 warrants outstanding at a weighted-average exercise price of $1.36.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, there was no activity in our outstanding warrants.

13. Earnings Per Share

On January 1, 2009, we adopted ASC 260 (formerly Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position (FSP)
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 03-6-1) (ASC 260), Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based
Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities (the “Staff Position”), which states that unvested share-based
payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents are considered participating
securities and shall be included in the computation of net income (loss) per share pursuant to the two-class method
described in ASC 260 (formerly Statement of  Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128), Earnings Per Share.
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In accordance with the Staff Position, basic net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss),
excluding net income (loss) attributable to participating securities, by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding less the weighted average unvested restricted shares outstanding. Diluted net income (loss) per share is
computed by dividing net income (loss), excluding net income (loss) attributable to participating securities, by the
denominator for basic net income (loss) per share and any dilutive effects of stock options, restricted stock,
convertible notes and warrants.

Three Months Ended
September 30,

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012
Basic:
Numerator:
Net loss $(806,259 ) $(2,238,552 ) $(2,235,799 ) $(7,286,454 )
Less: Net loss allocated to participating securities 169 32,415 801 144,349
Net loss attributable to stockholders (806,090 ) (2,206,137 ) (2,234,998 ) (7,142,105 )
Preferred stock dividend (28,980 ) (75,331 ) (124,509 ) (117,618 )
Preferred deemed dividend (501,304 ) — (875,304 ) —

$(1,336,374 ) $(2,281,468 ) $(3,234,811 ) $(7,259,723 )
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares outstanding 81,763,478 20,176,051 56,716,084 18,536,062
Weighted-average unvested restricted shares outstanding (17,106 ) (292,164 ) (20,317 ) (367,211 )
Denominator for basic net loss per share 81,746,372 19,883,887 56,695,767 18,168,851

Basic net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders $(0.02 ) $(0.11 ) $(0.06 ) $(0.40 )

Diluted:
Numerator:
Net loss $(806,259 ) $(2,238,552 ) $(2,235,799 ) $(7,286,454 )
Less: Net loss allocated to participating securities 169 32,415 801 144,349
Net loss attributable to stockholders (806,090 ) (2,206,137 ) (2,234,998 ) (7,142,105 )
Preferred stock dividend (28,980 ) (75,331 ) (124,509 ) (117,618 )
Preferred deemed dividend (501,304 ) — (875,304 ) —

$(1,336,374 ) $(2,281,468 ) $(3,234,811 ) $(7,259,723 )
Denominator:
Denominator for basic calculation 81,746,372 19,883,887 56,695,767 18,168,851
Weighted-average effect of dilutive stock options — — — —
Denominator for diluted net loss per share 81,746,372 19,883,887 56,695,767 18,168,851

Diluted net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders $(0.02 ) $(0.11 ) $(0.06 ) $(0.40 )

The following table sets forth potential shares of common stock at the end of each period presented that are not
included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because to do so would be anti-dilutive:

September
30, 2013

December
31, 2012
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Stock options outstanding 268,704 679,744
Unvested restricted stock 16,889 48,073
Warrants to purchase common stock 3,398,045 3,398,045
Preferred stock convertible into common stock 89,353,584 35,230,263
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14. Concentration of Risk

Supplier Relationships

Historically, we obtained virtually all of our solar panels from Suntech and Lightway. During 2012, because of our
cash position and liquidity constraints, we were late in making payments to both of these suppliers. On March 30,
2012, pursuant to our Supply Agreement with Lightway, we issued 1,900,000 shares of our common stock to
Lightway in partial payment of our past due account payable to them. At the time of issuance, the shares were valued
at $1,045,000. On May 1, 2012, Suntech filed a complaint for breach of contract, goods sold and delivered, account
stated and open account against us in the Superior Court of the State of California,  County of San
Francisco. Suntech alleged that it delivered products and did not receive full payment from us. On July 31, 2012, we
and Suntech entered into a settlement of this dispute. Because of our inability to make scheduled settlement
payments, on March 15, 2013, Suntech entered a judgment against us in the amount of $946,438. As of September 30,
2013, Suntech has not sought to enforce its judgment. As of September 30, 2013, we have included in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets a balance due to Suntech America of $946,438. We currently have no unshipped orders
from Suntech or Lightway.

In May 2013, we entered into a new supply agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Environmental
Engineering Group Pty Ltd (“EEG”), an assembler of polycrystalline modules located in Australia. In August 2013, we
began receiving product from EEG and began shipping product to customers during the third calendar quarter of this
year. We anticipate increased shipments to customers during the fourth quarter of 2013. We have remaining panel
inventory on hand as of September 30, 2013 and anticipate receiving a final shipment of product in November 2013,
fulfilling our purchase order with EEG. In September 2013, we entered into a second supply agreement for assembly
of our proprietary modules with Tianwei New Energy Co, Ltd., a panel supplier located in China. We anticipate
beginning to receive product from this new supplier beginning in the first quarter of 2014. Although we believe we
can find alternative suppliers for solar panels manufactured to our specifications, our operations would be disrupted
unless we are able to rapidly secure alternative sources of supply, our inventory and revenue could diminish
significantly, causing disruption to our operations.

Customer Relationships

The relative magnitude and the mix of revenue from our largest customers have varied significantly quarter to quarter.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, three customers have accounted for significant revenues,
varying by period, to our company: Lennar Corporation (Lennar), a leading national homebuilder, Lennox
International Inc. (Lennox), a global leader in the heating and air conditioning markets, and Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
(Lowe’s), a nationwide home improvement retail chain. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the
percentages of sales to Lennar, Lennox and Lowe’s are as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2013 2012
Lennox International Inc. 7.7 % 33.3 %
Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 7.1 % 8.0 %
Lennar Corporation 0.0 % 10.3 %

We had no receivable balance from Lennar as of September 30, 2013 or December 31, 2012. Lennox accounted for
0.7% and 5.9% of our gross accounts receivable as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
Lowe’s accounted for 8.8% and 4.0% of our gross accounts receivable as of September 30, 2013 and December 31,
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We maintain reserves for potential credit losses and such losses, in the aggregate, have generally not exceeded
management’s estimates. Our top three vendors accounted for approximately 25% and 36% of accounts payable as of
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, accounts
payable included amounts owed to our top three vendors of approximately $1.1 million and $960,000, respectively.
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15. Fair Value Measurement

We use a fair-value approach to value certain assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. We use a fair value hierarchy, which distinguishes between
assumptions based on market data (observable inputs) and an entity’s own assumptions (unobservable inputs). The
hierarchy consists of three levels:

• Level one — Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

• Level two — Inputs other than level one inputs that are either directly or indirectly observable; and

• Level three — Unobservable inputs developed using estimates and assumptions, which are developed by
the reporting entity and reflect those assumptions that a market participant would use.

Determining which category an asset or liability falls within the hierarchy requires significant judgment. We evaluate
our hierarchy disclosures each quarter. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are
summarized as follows:

Liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
September
30, 2013

Fair value of common stock warrant liability $— $— $— $—
Accrued rent related to office closures — — — —
Total $— $— $— $—

Liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December
31, 2012

Fair value of common stock warrant liability $— $— $9 $9
Accrued rent related to office closures — — 8,656 8,656
Total $— $— $8,665 $8,665

A discussion of the valuation techniques used to measure fair value for the common stock warrants is in Note 12. The
accrued rent relates to a non-cash charge for the closure of our Anaheim, California location, calculated by
discounting the future lease payments to their present value using a risk-free discount rate from 0.6%. The accrued
rent is included within liabilities of discontinued operations and long-term liabilities of discontinued operations in our
consolidated balance sheets.

The following table shows the changes in Level 3 liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013:

Other
Liabilities*

Common
Stock
Warrant
Liability

Total Level
3

Beginning balance – January 1, 2013 $8,656 $9 $8,665
Total realized and unrealized gains or losses 44 (9 ) 35
Repayments (8,700 ) — (8,700 )
Transfers out of level 3 upon exercise or conversion — — —
Ending balance – September 30, 2013 $— $— $—
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*           Represents the estimated fair value of the office closures included in accrued and other long-term liabilities.

16. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes arise from timing differences resulting from income and expense items reported for financial
account and tax purposes in different periods. A deferred tax asset valuation allowance is recorded when it is more
likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized. During the three months ended September 30, 2013, there
was no income tax expense or benefit for federal and state income taxes in the accompanying condensed consolidated
statements of operations due to our net loss and a valuation allowance on the resulting deferred tax asset. Our deferred
tax asset has a 100% valuation allowance.
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17. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

On May 1, 2012, Suntech America, Inc., a Delaware corporation (Suntech America), filed a complaint for breach of
contract, goods sold and delivered, account stated and open account against us in the Superior Court of the State of
California, County of San Francisco. Suntech America alleged that it delivered products and did not receive full
payment from us. On July 31, 2012, we and Suntech entered into a settlement of this dispute. Because of our inability
to make scheduled settlement payments, on March 15, 2013, Suntech entered a judgment against us in the amount of
$946,438. As of September 30, 2013, Suntech has not sought to enforce its judgment. As of September 30, 2013, we
have included in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets a balance due to Suntech America of $946,438.

We are also involved in other litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management, the outcome of such proceedings will not materially affect our financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

All references to the “Company,” “we,” “our,” and “us” refer to Andalay Solar, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Andalay Solar”).

The following discussion highlights what we believe are the principal factors that have affected our financial
condition and results of operations as well as our liquidity and capital resources for the periods described. This
discussion should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this
Quarterly Report and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. This discussion contains “forward-looking statements,”
including but not limited to expectations regarding revenue growth, net sales, gross profit, operating expenses and
performance objectives, and statements using the terms “believes,” “expects,” “will,” “could,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “intends,” “potential,” “continue,” “should,” “may,” or the negative of these terms or similar expressions. These
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results to differ materially
from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, without
limitation, the risks described below in Item 1A. of Part II of this Quarterly Report. Further information on potential
risk factors that could affect our future business and financial results and financial condition can be found in our
periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). We undertake no obligation to update any
of these forward-looking statements.

Company Overview

We are a designer and manufacturer of solar power systems and solar panels with integrated microinverters (which we
call AC solar panels). We design, market and sell these solar power systems to solar installers and do-it-yourself
customers through distribution partnerships, our dealer network and retail outlets. Our products are designed for use in
solar power systems for residential and commercial rooftop customers. Prior to September 2010, we were also in the
solar power installation business.

We were incorporated in February 2001 as Akeena Solar, Inc. in the State of California and elected at that time to be
taxed as an S corporation. During June 2006, we reincorporated in the State of Delaware and became a C corporation.
On August 11, 2006, we entered into a reverse merger transaction with Fairview Energy Corporation, Inc. (“Fairview”).
Pursuant to the Merger, the stockholders of the Company received one share of Fairview common stock for each
issued and outstanding share of The Company’s common stock. The Company’s common shares were also adjusted
from $0.01 par value to $0.001 par value at the time of the Merger. On May 17, 2010, we entered into an exclusive
worldwide license agreement with Westinghouse, Inc, which permitted us to manufacture, distribute and market solar
panels under the Westinghouse name and in connection therewith, on April 6, 2011, we changed our name to
Westinghouse Solar, Inc. On August 23, 2013, the license agreement with Westinghouse, Inc. was terminated and on
September 19, 2013, we changed our name to our current name, Andalay Solar, Inc.

In September 2007, we introduced our “plug and play” solar panel technology (under the brand name “Andalay”), which
we believe significantly reduces the installation time and costs, and provides superior reliability and aesthetics, when
compared to other solar panel mounting products and technology. Our panel technology offers the following features:
(i) mounts closer to the roof with less space in between panels; (ii) no unsightly racks underneath or beside panels;
(iii) built-in wiring connections; (iv) approximately 70% fewer roof-assembled parts and approximately 50% less
roof-top labor required; (v) approximately 25% fewer roof attachment points; (vi) complete compliance with the
National Electric Code and UL wiring and grounding requirements. We have five U.S. patents (Patent No. 7,406,800,
Patent No. 7,832,157, Patent No. 7,866,098, Patent No. 7,987,614 and Patent No. 8,505,248) that cover key aspects of
our Andalay solar panel technology, as well as U.S. Trademark No. 3481373 for registration of the mark “Andalay.” In
addition to these U.S. patents, we have 9 foreign patents. Currently, we have 14 issued patents and 15 other pending
U.S. and foreign patent applications that cover the Andalay technology working their way through the USPTO and
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In February 2009, we announced a strategic relationship with Enphase, a leading manufacturer of microinverters, to
develop and market solar panel systems with ordinary AC house current output instead of high voltage DC output. We
introduced Andalay AC panel products and began offering them to our customers in the second quarter of 2009.
Andalay AC panels cost less to install, are safer, and generally provide higher energy output than ordinary DC panels.
Andalay AC panels deliver 5-25% more energy compared to ordinary panels, produce safe household AC power, and
have built-in panel level monitoring, racking, wiring, grounding and microinverters. With 80% fewer parts and 5 – 25%
better performance than ordinary DC panels, we believe Andalay AC panels are an ideal solution for solar installers,
trade workers and do-it-yourself customers.
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Concentration of Risk in Customer and Supplier Relationships

Concentration of Risk in Supplier Relationships

Historically, we obtained virtually all of our solar panels from Suntech and Lightway. During 2012, because of our
cash position and liquidity constraints, we were late in making payments to both of these suppliers. On March 30,
2012, pursuant to our Supply Agreement with Lightway, we issued 1,900,000 shares of our common stock to
Lightway in partial payment of our past due account payable to them. At the time of issuance, the shares were valued
at $1,045,000. On May 1, 2012, Suntech filed a complaint for breach of contract, goods sold and delivered, account
stated and open account against us in the Superior Court of the State of California,  County of San
Francisco. Suntech alleged that it delivered products and did not receive full payment from us. On July 31, 2012, we
and Suntech entered into a settlement of this dispute. Because of our inability to make scheduled settlement
payments, on March 15, 2013, Suntech entered a judgment against us in the amount of $946,438. As of September 30,
2013, Suntech has not sought to enforce its judgment. As of September 30, 2013, we have included in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets a balance due to Suntech America of $946,438. We currently have no unshipped orders
from Suntech or Lightway.

In May 2013, we entered into a new supply agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Environmental
Engineering Group Pty Ltd (“EEG”), an assembler of polycrystalline modules located in Australia. In August 2013, we
began receiving product from EEG and began shipping product to customers during the third calendar quarter of this
year. We anticipate increased shipments to customers during the fourth quarter of 2013. We have remaining panel
inventory on hand as of September 30, 2013 and anticipate receiving a final shipment of product in November 2013,
fulfilling our purchase order with EEG. In September 2013, we entered into a second supply agreement for assembly
of our proprietary modules with Tianwei New Energy Co, Ltd., a panel supplier located in China. We anticipate
beginning to receive product from this new supplier beginning in the first quarter of 2014. Although we believe we
can find alternative suppliers for solar panels manufactured to our specifications, our operations would be disrupted
unless we are able to rapidly secure alternative sources of supply, our inventory and revenue could diminish
significantly, causing disruption to our operations.

Concentration of Risk in Customer Relationships

The relative magnitude and the mix of revenue from our largest customers have varied significantly quarter to quarter.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, three customers have accounted for significant revenues,
varying by period, to our company: Lennar Corporation (Lennar), a leading national homebuilder, Lennox
International Inc. (Lennox), a global leader in the heating and air conditioning markets, and Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
(Lowe’s), a nationwide home improvement retail chain. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the
percentages of sales to Lennar, Lennox and Lowe’s are as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2013 2012
Lennox International Inc. 7.7 % 33.3 %
Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 7.1 % 8.0 %
Lennar Corporation 0.0 % 10.3 %

We had no receivable balance from Lennar as of September 30, 2013 or December 31, 2012. Lennox accounted for
0.7% and 5.9% of our gross accounts receivable as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.
Lowe’s accounted for 8.8% and 4.0% of our gross accounts receivable as of September 30, 2013 and December 31,
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We maintain reserves for potential credit losses and such losses, in the aggregate, have generally not exceeded
management’s estimates. Our top three vendors accounted for approximately 25% and 36% of accounts payable as of
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, accounts
payable included amounts owed to our top three vendors of approximately $1.1 million and $960,000, respectively.
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Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 as Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2012

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain information related to our operations, expressed in
dollars and as a percentage of net revenue:

Three Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012

Net revenue $156,630 100.0 % $838,446 100.0 %
Cost of goods sold 167,891 107.2 % 1,063,538 126.8 %
        Gross loss (11,261 ) (7.2 )% (225,092 ) (26.8 )%
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing 201,590 128.7 % 536,463 64.0 %
General and administrative 595,241 380.0 % 1,458,468 173.9 %
Total operating expenses 796,831 508.7 % 1,994,931 237.9 %
Loss from continuing operations (808,092 ) (515.9 )% (2,220,023 ) (264.8 )%
Other income (expense)
Interest (expense), net (1,367 ) (0.9 )% (36,432 ) (4.6 )%
Adjustment to the fair value of common stock warrants — 0.0 % 8,972 1.1 %
Other income — 0.0 % — 0.0 %
Total other expense, net (1,367 ) (0.9 )% (27,460 ) (3.3 )%
Loss before provision for income taxes and
discontinued operations (809,459 ) (516.8 )% (2,247,484 ) (268.1 )%
Provision for income taxes — 0.0 % — 0.0 %
Net loss from continuing operations (Note 3) (809,459 ) (516.8 )% (2,247,484 ) (268.1 )%
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of
tax 3,200 2.0 % 8,932 1.1 %
Net loss (806,259 ) (514.8 )% (2,238,552 ) (267.0 )%
Preferred stock dividend (28,980 ) (18.5 )% (75,331 ) (9.0 )%
Preferred deemed dividend (501,304 ) (506.2 )% — 0.0 %
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $(1,336,543 ) (1,039.5 )% $(2,313,883 ) (276.0 )%

Net loss attributable to common stockholders per
common and common equivalent share (basic and
diluted) $(0.02 ) $(0.11 )

Weighted average shares used in computing loss per
common share: (basic and diluted) 81,746,372 19,883,887

Net revenue

We generate revenue from the sale of solar power systems. For the three months ended September 30, 2013, we
generated $157,000 of revenue, a decrease of $682,000, or 81.3%, compared to $838,000 of revenue for the three
months ended September 30, 2012. The decrease in revenue was due to limited inventory levels due to supplier
relationship issues. In May 2013, we entered into a new supply agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules
with Environmental Engineering Group Pty Ltd (“EEG”), an assembler of polycrystalline modules located in Australia.
In August 2013, we began receiving product from EEG and began shipping product to customers during the third
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calendar quarter of this year. We anticipate increased shipments to customers during the fourth quarter of 2013. We
have remaining panel inventory on hand as of September 30, 2013 and anticipate receiving a final shipment of product
in November 2013, fulfilling our purchase order with EEG. In September 2013, we entered into a second supply
agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Tianwei New Energy Co, Ltd., a panel supplier located in
China. We anticipate beginning to receive product from this new supplier beginning in the first quarter of 2014.
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Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold as a percent of revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2013, was 107.2% of net
revenue, compared to 126.8% for the three months ended September 30, 2012. Gross loss for the three months ended
September 30, 2013 was $11,000, or 7.2% of revenue, compared to gross loss of $225,000 or 26.8% of revenue for the
same period in 2012. During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, we recorded a $271,000 inventory write-down
which represented 32.3% of revenue. This non-cash charge was an adjustment to the carrying value of our older,
smaller-format solar panels and older micro-inverter inventory to reflect the decline in market prices compared to our
original cost and a write-off of accumulated inventory overhead costs. The increase in gross margin in the three
months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012, was due to the inventory
revaluation and higher inventory overhead allocations.

Sales and marketing expenses

Sales and marketing expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2013 were $202,000, or 128.7% of net
revenue as compared to $536,000, or 64.0% of net revenue during the same period of the prior year. The $335,000
decrease in sales and marketing expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same
period in 2012 was primarily due to decreases in payroll and commission costs of $131,000, advertising costs and
trade shows expense of $72,000, licensing fees owed to Westinghouse Electric Corporation of $49,000 and stock
compensation costs of $40,000. The decrease in payroll and stock compensation costs was due to lower headcount.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2013 were $595,000, or 380.0% of net
revenue as compared to $1.5 million, or 173.9% of net revenue during the same period of the prior year. The decrease
in general and administrative expense for the three months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same period in
2012, was due primarily to lower bad debt expense of  $358,000, legal and professional fees of $273,000, payroll
costs of $125,000, research and development costs of $72,000 and insurance expense of $48,000. The decrease in bad
debt expense was driven by a $400,000 non-cash write-down of a receivable from a supplier in the prior year. The
decrease in legal and professional fees related to the recently terminated CBD merger transaction in the prior year.
The decrease in payroll and stock compensation costs was due to lower headcount. The decrease in research and
development costs was due to lower prototype parts and material and lower headcount.

Interest, net

During the three months ended September 30, 2013, net interest expense was approximately $1,000 compared with
net interest expense of $36,000 for the same period in 2012.

Adjustment to the fair value of common stock warrants

During the three months ended September 30, 2012, we recorded mark-to-market adjustments to reflect the fair value
of outstanding common stock warrants accounted for as a liability, resulting in an unrealized gain of $9,000 in our
condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Income taxes

During the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, there was no income tax expense or benefit for federal
and state income taxes reflected in our condensed consolidated statements of operations due to our net loss and a
valuation allowance on the resulting deferred tax asset.
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Net loss from continuing operations

Net loss from continuing operations for the three months ended September 30, 2013 was $809,000, compared to a net
loss from continuing operations of $2.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2012. For the three months
ended September 30, 2012, the net loss included a favorable non-cash adjustment to the fair value of common stock
warrants of $9,000. Excluding the impact of the common stock warrant adjustment, net loss from continuing
operations for the three months ended September 30, 2012 was $2.2 million, or $0.11 per share.

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations

As a result of the exit from the installation business on September 7, 2010, we recorded net income of $3,000 from the
discontinuance of our installation business segment for the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared with
net income of $9,000 during the same period in 2012.

Preferred deemed dividend

On February 15, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with an institutional accredited investor
relating to the sale and issuance of up to 1,150 shares of our newly created Series D Preferred Stock at a price per
share equal to the stated value, which is $1,000 per share, for aggregate proceeds of up to $1,000,000. At the initial
closing, concurrent with entering the agreement, we issued 150 shares of Series D Preferred, for initial aggregate
proceeds of $150,000. After the initial closing, the securities purchase agreement permits the purchaser to exercise a
“call” right to purchase additional Series D Preferred in multiple draw downs from time to time until December 31,
2013, subject to certain limits, terms and conditions. In March 2013, we and investors entered into a letter agreement
to the securities purchase agreement dated as of February 15, 2013, modifying the number of shares of Series D
Preferred Stock to be issued upon settlement of any purchaser draw downs made on or after March 18, 2013, equal to
the purchaser investment amount divided by the stated value multiplied by a number agreed upon by the Company
and the purchaser, which shall not be higher than 1.67. Subsequently, on March 21, 2013, we issued 167 shares of
Series D Preferred for aggregate proceeds of $100,000. On May 13, 2013, we and investors entered into a letter
agreement amendment to the securities purchase agreement dated as of February 15, 2013, modifying the number of
shares of Series D Preferred Stock that may be issued upon draw downs made on or after May 13, 2013, equal to the
purchaser investment amount divided by the stated value multiplied by a number agreed upon by us and the purchaser,
which shall not be higher than 3.34. The corresponding conversion price into underlying shares of our common stock
is $0.03 per share. On May 13, 2013, we issued 583 shares of Series D Preferred to an investor for aggregate proceeds
of $175,000. On August 30, 2013, we entered into an agreement to sell $200,000 in convertible notes. As a result of
the sale of these convertible notes and as a result of the contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred and
Series D Preferred, which reduced the conversion price from $0.03 to $0.02 per share on the Series C and from $0.10
to $0.02 per share on the Series D on the total 147 shares and 930 shares, respectively, of Series C Preferred Stock and
Series D Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at August 30, 2013, and which resulted in an increase in the number
of common shares issuable, we recognized additional preferred deemed dividends of $36,000 on the Series C
Preferred Stock and $465,000 on the Series D Preferred Stock. The net loss attributable to common shareholders
reflects both the net loss and the deemed dividend. As a result of the $500,000 loan and security agreement entered
into on September 30, 2013, we issued to the lender 50 shares of our Series D Preferred stock for the $50,000 loan
origination fee.
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 as Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain information related to our operations, expressed in
dollars and as a percentage of net sales:

Nine Months Ended September 30,
2013 2012

Net revenue $367,870 100.0 % $4,469,997 100.0 %
Cost of goods sold 407,359 110.7 % 4,486,541 100.4 %
        Gross loss (39,489 ) (10.7 )% (16,544 ) (0.4 )%
Operating expenses
Sales and marketing 804,048 218.6 % 1,627,166 36.4 %
General and administrative 1,816,338 493.7 % 5,185,762 116.0 %
Total operating expenses 2,620,386 712.3 % 6,812,928 152.4 %
Loss from continuing operations (2,659,875 ) (723.0 )% (6,829,472 ) (152.8 )%
Other income (expense)
Interest income (expense), net (6,730 ) (1.8 )% (71,219 ) (1.6 )%
Adjustment to the fair value of common stock warrants 9 0.0 % (417,668 ) (9.3 )%
Other income 420,000 114.2 % — 0.0 %
Total other income (expense) 413,279 112.3 % (488,887 ) (10.9 )%
Loss before provision for income taxes and discontinued
operations (2,246,596 ) (610.7 )% (7,318,359 ) (163.7 )%
Provision for income taxes — 0.0 % — 0.0 %
Net loss from continuing operations (2,246,596 ) (610.7 )% (7,318,359 ) (163.7 )%
Net income from discontinued operations, net of tax
(Note 3) 10,797 2.9 % 31,905 0.7 %
Net loss (2,235,799 ) (607.8 )% (7,286,454 ) (163.0 )%
Preferred stock dividend (124,509 ) (33.8 )% (117,618 ) (2.6 )%
Preferred deemed dividend (875,304 ) (317.2 )% — 0.0 %
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $(3,235,612 ) (958.8 )% $(7,404,072 ) (165.6 )%

Net loss attributable to common stockholders per
common and common equivalent share (basic and
diluted) $(0.06 ) $(0.40 )

Weighted average shares used in computing loss per
common share: (basic and diluted) 56,695,767 18,163,851

Net revenue

We generate revenue from the sale of solar power systems. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we
generated $368,000 of revenue, a decrease of $4.1 million, or 91.8%, compared to $4.5 million of revenue for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012. The decrease in revenue was due to limited inventory levels due to supplier
relationship issues. In May 2013, we entered into a new supply agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules
with Environmental Engineering Group Pty Ltd (“EEG”), an assembler of polycrystalline modules located in Australia.
In August 2013, we began receiving product from EEG and began shipping product to customers during the third
calendar quarter of this year. We anticipate increased shipments to customers during the fourth quarter of 2013. We
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have remaining panel inventory on hand as of September 30, 2013 and anticipate receiving a final shipment of product
in November 2013, fulfilling our purchase order with EEG. In September 2013, we entered into a second supply
agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Tianwei New Energy Co, Ltd., a panel supplier located in
China. We anticipate beginning to receive product from this new supplier beginning in the first quarter of 2014.
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Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold as a percent of revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, was 110.7% of net revenue,
compared to 100.4% for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. Gross loss for the nine months ended September
30, 2013 was $39,000, or 10.7% of revenue, compared to gross loss of $17,000 or 0.4% of revenue for the same
period in 2012. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, we recorded a $271,000 inventory write-down
which represented 32.3% of revenue. This non-cash charge was an adjustment to the carrying value of our older,
smaller-format solar panels and older micro-inverter inventory to reflect the decline in market prices compared to our
original cost and a write-off of accumulated inventory overhead costs. The decrease in gross margin for the nine
months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012, was due to higher
inventory overhead allocations related to lower revenue volume.

Sales and marketing expenses

Sales and marketing expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 were $804,000, or 218.6% of net
revenue as compared to $1.6 million, or 36.4% of net revenue during the same period of the prior year. The $823,000
decrease in sales and marketing expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same period
in 2012 was primarily due to decreases in payroll and commission costs of $467,000, advertising costs and trade
shows expense of $214,000, stock compensation costs of $153,000 and $65,000 in travel costs, partially offset by an
increase in licensing fees owed to Westinghouse Electric Corporation of $76,000. The decrease in payroll and stock
compensation costs was due to lower headcount.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 were $1.8 million, or 493.7% of
net revenue as compared to $5.2 million, or 116.0% of net revenue during the same period of the prior year. The
decrease in general and administrative expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same
period in 2012, was due primarily to lower legal and professional fees by $1.7 million, payroll costs of $626,000, bad
debt expense of $387,000, research and development costs of $319,000, insurance expense of $120,000 and travel
costs of $48,000. The decrease in legal and professional fees related to the recently terminated CBD merger
transaction and patent litigation costs in the prior year. The decrease in payroll and stock compensation costs was due
to lower headcount. The decrease in bad debt expense was driven by a $400,000 non-cash write-down of a receivable
from a supplier in the prior year. The decrease in research and development costs was due to lower prototype parts and
material and lower headcount.

Other Income

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we recorded other income of $420,000, net of legal fees, relating
to the favorable settlement of a legal dispute relating to a supply agreement with a former customer.

Interest, net

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, net interest expense was approximately $7,000 compared with net
interest expense of $71,000 for the same period in 2012.
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Adjustment to the fair value of common stock warrants

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the fair value of the warrants was reduced to zero as a result of the
decrease in the price of our common stock. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012, we recorded
mark-to-market adjustments to reflect the fair value of outstanding common stock warrants accounted for as a
liability, resulting in an unrealized loss of $418,000 in our condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Income taxes

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, there was no income tax expense or benefit for federal
and state income taxes reflected in our condensed consolidated statements of operations due to our net loss and a
valuation allowance on the resulting deferred tax asset.

Net income from continuing operations

Net loss from continuing operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was $2.2 million, compared to a
net loss from continuing operations of $7.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2012, the net loss included an unfavorable non-cash adjustment to the fair value of
common stock warrants of $418,000. Excluding the impact of the common stock warrant adjustment, net loss from
continuing operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $6.8 million, or $0.38 per share.

Gain (loss) from discontinued operations

As a result of the exit from the installation business on September 7, 2010, we recorded an $11,000 net gain from the
discontinuance of our installation business segment for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, compared with net
income of $32,000 during the same period in 2012.

Preferred deemed dividend

On October 18, 2012, we entered into a securities purchase agreement relating to the sale and issuance of up to 1,245
shares of our Series C Preferred Stock, for aggregate proceeds of up to $1,245,000.  At the initial closing, we sold and
issued 750 shares of Series C Preferred, for initial aggregate proceeds of $750,000. On November 2, 2012, we sold an
aggregate of 350 additional shares of our Series C Preferred to the purchasers for aggregate proceeds of $350,000.  As
a result of the contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred, which reduced the conversion price from
$0.155 to $0.08 per share on the total 750 shares of Series C Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at November 2,
2012, and which resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we recognized a preferred deemed
dividend of $363,000.

On January 24, 2013, we provided to the purchasers of our Series C Preferred Stock a draw down notice under the
purchase agreement. The purchasers agreed to accept the new draw down notice and thereby extend our right to
exercise a “put” to sell additional Series C Preferred beyond the securities purchase agreement’s prior expiration date of
December 31, 2012. As a result of the draw down, we sold an aggregate of 75 additional shares of Series C Preferred
to the purchasers for aggregate proceeds of $75,000. Based on the closing price of our common stock as reported on
the OTCQB Marketplace on January 24, 2013 (which was $0.05 per share), the 75 shares of Series C Preferred to be
issued pursuant to the draw down would be convertible into 1,500,000 shares of our common stock. As a result of the
contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred, which reduced the conversion price from $0.08 to $0.05 per
share on the total 720 shares of Series C Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at January 24, 2013, and which
resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we recognized additional preferred deemed
dividends of $270,000.
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As a result of the January 24, 2013 draw down notice, pursuant to the terms of the outstanding Series B Preferred
Stock, the conversion price of the Series B Preferred was reduced from $0.08 per share of common stock to become
equal to $0.05, and the conversion price of the Series C Preferred issued under the initial closing was reduced from
$0.08 per share of common stock to become equal to $0.05. As a result of the May 13, 2013 draw down notice, the
price of the Series B Preferred was further reduced from $0.05 per share of common stock to become equal to $0.03,
and the conversion price of the Series C Preferred was also further reduced from $0.05 per share of common stock to
$0.03. As of September 30, 2013, there were 823 shares of Series B Preferred that remain outstanding. With the May
13, 2013 draw down, and after recent conversions of our Series C Preferred, there are 97 shares of Series C Preferred
that remain outstanding. As a result of our August 30, 2013 financing, the conversion prices of the Series B and Series
C Preferred were further reduced from $0.03 per share of common stock to $0.02. After adjustment to the conversion
prices as a result of the August 30, 2013 financing, the outstanding Series B Preferred and Series C Preferred would
be convertible into 37,020,234 shares and 4,833,350 shares, respectively, of our common stock.

On February 15, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with an institutional accredited investor
relating to the sale and issuance of up to 1,150 shares of our newly created Series D Preferred Stock at a price per
share equal to the stated value, which is $1,000 per share, for aggregate proceeds of up to $1,000,000. At the initial
closing, concurrent with entering the agreement, we issued 150 shares of Series D Preferred, for initial aggregate
proceeds of $150,000. After the initial closing, the securities purchase agreement permits the purchaser to exercise a
“call” right to purchase additional Series D Preferred in multiple draw downs from time to time until December 31,
2013, subject to certain limits, terms and conditions. In March 2013, the company and investors entered into a letter
agreement to the securities purchase agreement dated as of February 15, 2013, modifying the number of shares of
Series D Preferred Stock to be issued upon settlement of any purchaser draw downs made on or after March 18, 2013,
equal to the purchaser investment amount divided by the stated value multiplied by a number agreed upon by the
Company and the purchaser, which shall not be higher than 1.67.  Subsequently, on March 21, 2013, we issued 167
shares of Series D Preferred for aggregate proceeds of $100,000. On May 13, 2013, we entered into a letter agreement
amendment to the securities purchase agreement dated as of February 15, 2013 with certain investors, modifying the
number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock that may be issued upon draw downs made on or after May 13, 2013,
equal to the purchaser investment amount divided by the stated value multiplied by a number agreed upon by us and
the purchaser, which shall not be higher than 3.34. The corresponding conversion price into underlying shares of our
common stock is $0.03 per share. On May 13, 2013, we issued 583 shares of Series D Preferred to an investor for
aggregate proceeds of $175,000. As a result of the contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred, which
reduced the conversion price from $0.05 to $0.03 per share on the total 260 shares of Series C Preferred Stock issued
and outstanding at May 13, 2013, and which resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we
recognized additional preferred deemed dividends of $104,000. On August 30, 2013, we entered into an agreement to
sell $200,000 in convertible notes. As a result of the sale of these convertible notes and as a result of the contingent
conversion feature on the Series C Preferred and Series D Preferred, which reduced the conversion price from $0.03 to
$0.02 per share on the Series C and from $0.10 to $0.02 per share on the Series D on the total 147 shares and 930
shares, respectively, of Series C Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at August 30,
2013, and which resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we recognized additional preferred
deemed dividends of $36,000 on the Series C Preferred Stock and $465,000 on the Series D Preferred Stock. The net
loss attributable to common shareholders reflects both the net loss and the deemed dividend.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We currently face challenges meeting the working capital needs of our business. Our primary requirements for
working capital are to fund purchases for solar panels and microinverters, and to cover our payroll and lease expenses.
For each quarter in 2013 and for each of the two years in the period ending December 31, 2012, we have incurred net
losses and negative cash flows from operations. During the recent years, we have undertaken several equity and debt
financing transactions to provide the capital needed to sustain our business. We have dramatically reduced our
headcount and other variable expenses. In addition, we expect to incur a net loss from operations for the year ending
December 31, 2013. As of September 30, 2013, we had approximately $379,000 in cash on hand.  Based on current
cash projections for the remainder of 2013, we intend to address ongoing working capital needs through liquidation of
remaining inventory, along with raising additional debt and equity financing.  In January 2013, our board of directors
approved actions to dramatically reduce our variable operating costs, including a 12 person employee headcount
reduction effective January 15, 2013, for the period through the anticipated merger closing with CBD, which merger
was terminated in July 2013. No restructuring charges or severance payments were incurred.  Our revenue levels
remain difficult to predict, and we anticipate that we will continue to sustain losses in the near term, and we cannot
assure investors that we will be successful in reaching break-even.

During 2012, because of our cash position and liquidity constraints, we were late in making payments to both of our
former panel suppliers, Suntech and Lightway. We currently have no unshipped orders from these suppliers. In May
2013, we entered into a new supply agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Environmental
Engineering Group Pty Ltd (“EEG”), an assembler of polycrystalline modules located in Australia. In August 2013, we
began receiving product from EEG and began shipping product to customers during the third calendar quarter of this
year. We anticipate increased shipments to customers during the fourth quarter of 2013. We had a limited amount of
remaining inventory on hand as of November 1, 2013 and anticipate receiving a final shipment of product in
November 2013, fulfilling our purchase order with EEG. In September 2013, we entered into a second supply
agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Tianwei New Energy Co, Ltd., a panel supplier located in
China. We anticipate beginning to receive product from this new supplier beginning in the first quarter of 2014.
Although we believe we can find alternative suppliers for solar panels manufactured to our specifications, our
operations would be disrupted unless we are able to rapidly secure alternative sources of supply, our inventory and
revenue could diminish significantly, causing disruption to our operations.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming we will continue as a going
concern. Our significant operating losses, negative cash flow from operations, and challenges in rapidly securing
alternative sources of supply for solar panels, raise substantial uncertainty about our ability to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of
this uncertainty, and contemplate the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities and commitments in the
normal course of business. There can be no assurance that we will be able to raise additional funds on commercially
reasonable terms, if at all. The current economic downturn adds uncertainty to our anticipated revenue levels and to
the timing of cash receipts, which are needed to support our operations. It also worsens the market conditions for
seeking equity and debt financing. As a result of our delisting from the Nasdaq Capital Market in September 2012, we
are no longer eligible to file new registration statements on Form S-3, which may make it more costly and more
difficult for us to obtain additional equity financing.  We currently anticipate that we will retain all of our earnings, if
any, for development of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on common stock in the
foreseeable future.

Convertible Note Payable

On August 30, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional accredited investors
relating to the sale and issuance of a convertible note in the principal amount of $200,000 that matures August 29,
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2015 (the "Convertible Note").  The Convertible Note bears interest at the rate of 8% per annum compounded
annually, is payable at maturity and the principal and interest outstanding under the Convertible Note are convertible
into shares of our common stock, at any time after issuance, at the option of the purchaser, at a conversion price equal
to $.02, subject to adjustment upon the happening of certain events, including stock dividends, stock splits and the
issuance of common stock equivalents at a price below the conversion price. Subject to our fulfilling certain
conditions, including beneficial ownership limits, the Convertible Note is subject to a mandatory conversion if the
closing price of our common stock for any 20 consecutive days commencing six months after the issue date of the
Convertible Note equals or exceeds $0.04. Unless waived in writing by the purchaser, no conversion of the
Convertible Note can be effected to the extent that as a result of such conversion the purchaser would beneficially own
more than 9.99% in the aggregate of our issued and outstanding common stock immediately after giving effect to the
issuance of common stock upon conversion. The terms of the convertible note meet the criteria for bifurcation of an
embedded derivative, however, the amount of such embedded derivative was deemed to have a de minimis value.

We have the option of repaying the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Note, in whole or in part, by
paying the purchaser a sum of money equal to one hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the principal together with
accrued but unpaid interest upon 30 days notice, subject to certain beneficial ownership limits. For so long as we
have any obligation under the Convertible Note, we have agreed to certain restrictions regarding, among other things,
incurrence of additional debt, liens, amendments to charter documents, repurchase of stock, payment of cash
dividends, affiliated transactions. We are also prohibited from entering into certain variable priced agreements until
the Convertible Note is repaid in full.
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Loan and Security Agreement

On September 30, 2013, we entered into a loan and security agreement with Alpha Capital Anstalt and Collateral
Services, LLC to provide financing, on a discretionary basis, for one year, against our accounts receivable and
inventory.  The maximum amount that can be borrowed under the Agreement is $500,000. We have the right to
borrow up to 80% of our eligible accounts receivable, not in excess of $200,000, 50% of the value of our raw
materials in inventory, 65% of our finished goods inventory and 95% of cash, but not in the aggregate amount in
excess of $300,000.  The advances are secured by a lien on all of our assets. All advances under the agreement bear
interest at a per annum rate of 12% and monthly interest shall be a minimum of $500. At the time of initial funding we
paid a loan fee of 50 shares of our Series D Preferred Shares to the lender, in addition to other payments for legal fees.
In addition, we paid the collateral agent an initial fee of $5,000 and have agreed to pay an administrative fee to the
collateral agent of 0.5% per month of the daily balance during the preceding month or $500 whichever is less. In the
event that of a prepayment, we are obligated to pay a prepayment fee in an amount equal to one percent (0.5%) of
$500,000. On September 30, 2013, we requested and received an initial borrowing under the Agreement totaling
$350,000. Subsequently, on October 21, 2013, we requested and received an additional $100,000.

Line of Credit

On February 15, 2011, we entered into a Business Financing Agreement (the "2011 Credit Facility") with Bridge
Bank, National Association (“Bridge Bank”) to finance our accounts receivables. The 2011 Credit Facility provided for
a credit limit of $750,000, representing the maximum amount of advances based on up to 50% of $1.5 million of gross
eligible accounts receivables. The 2011 Credit Facility was terminated on August 16, 2013.

Equity Financing Activity

On March 30, 2012, we entered into an amendment with the outstanding Series K warrants (Series K Amendment)
removing the provision for any future price adjustment to the exercise price. On March 30, 2012, the fair value of the
warrants was estimated using Black-Scholes with the following weighted average assumptions: risk-free interest rate
of 0.5%, an expected life of 3.0 years; an expected volatility factor of 109.3% and a dividend yield of 0.0%. The fair
value of the warrants decreased to $481,000 as of March 30, 2012 and we recognized a $425,000 unfavorable
non-cash adjustment from the change in fair value of these warrants during the three months ended March 31, 2012.
As a result of the March 30, 2012 Series K Amendment the fair value of the warrants of $481,000 was reclassified
from warrant liability to equity.

On March 30, 2012, pursuant to our supply agreement with Lightway, we issued 1,900,000 shares of our common
stock to them. The shares were issued at $0.55 per share based on the latest closing sale price on the date of issuance.

On August 14, 2012, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with an institutional accredited investor relating
to the sale of 2,000,000 shares of our common stock at a price of $0.25 per share. The aggregate purchase price was
$500,000.

On October 18, 2012, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional accredited investors
relating to the sale and issuance of up to 1,245 shares of our newly created Series C 8% Convertible Preferred Stock at
a price of $1,000 per share, for aggregate proceeds of up to $1,245,000.  At the initial closing, we sold and issue 750
shares of Series C Preferred, for initial aggregate proceeds of $750,000.  Subsequently, on November 2, 2012, we sold
and issued 350 shares of Series C Preferred for proceeds of $350,000.  On January 24, 2013, we provided to the
purchasers of our Series C Preferred Stock a draw down notice under the purchase agreement. The purchasers agreed
to accept the new draw down notice and thereby extend our right to exercise a “put” to sell additional Series C Preferred
beyond the securities purchase agreement’s prior expiration date of December 31, 2012. As a result of the draw down,
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we sold an aggregate of 75 additional shares of Series C Preferred to the purchasers for aggregate proceeds of
$75,000. Based on the closing price of our common stock as reported on the OTCQB Marketplace on January 24,
2013 (which was $0.05 per share), the 75 shares of Series C Preferred to be issued pursuant to the draw down would
be convertible into 1,500,000 shares of our common stock.

On January 24, 2013, we provided to the purchasers of our Series C Preferred Stock a draw down notice under the
purchase agreement. The purchasers agreed to accept the new draw down notice and thereby extend our right to
exercise a “put” to sell additional Series C Preferred beyond the securities purchase agreement’s prior expiration date of
December 31, 2012. As a result of the draw down, we sold an aggregate of 75 additional shares of Series C Preferred
to the purchasers for aggregate proceeds of $75,000. Based on the closing price of our common stock as reported on
the OTCQB Marketplace on January 24, 2013 (which was $0.05 per share), the 75 shares of Series C Preferred to be
issued pursuant to the draw down would be convertible into 1,500,000 shares of our common stock. As a result of the
contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred, which reduced the conversion price from $0.08 to $0.05 per
share on the total 720 shares of Series C Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at January 24, 2013, and which
resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we recognized additional preferred deemed
dividends of $270,000.

As a result of the January 24, 2013 draw down notice, pursuant to the terms of the outstanding Series B Preferred
Stock, the conversion price of the Series B Preferred was reduced from $0.08 per share of common stock to become
equal to $0.05, and the conversion price of the Series C Preferred issued under the initial closing was reduced from
$0.08 per share of common stock to become equal to $0.05. As a result of the May 13, 2013 draw down notice, the
price of the Series B Preferred was further reduced from $0.05 per share of common stock to become equal to $0.03,
and the conversion price of the Series C Preferred was also further reduced from $0.05 per share of common stock to
$0.03. As of September 30, 2013, there were 823 shares of Series B Preferred that remain outstanding. With the May
13, 2013 draw down, and after recent conversions of our Series C Preferred, there are 97 shares of Series C Preferred
that remain outstanding. As a result of our August 30, 2013 financing, the conversion price of the Series B Preferred
was further reduced from $0.03 per share of common stock to $0.02 and the conversion price of the Series C Preferred
was also further reduced from $0.03 per share of common stock to $0.02. After adjustment to the conversion prices as
a result of the August 30, 2013 financing, the outstanding Series B Preferred and Series C Preferred would be
convertible into 37,020,234 shares and 4,833,350 shares, respectively, of our common stock.
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On February 15, 2013, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with an institutional accredited investor
relating to the sale and issuance of up to 1,150 shares of our newly created Series D Preferred Stock at a price per
share equal to the stated value, which is $1,000 per share, for aggregate proceeds of up to $1,000,000. At the initial
closing, concurrent with entering the agreement, we issued 150 shares of Series D Preferred, for initial aggregate
proceeds of $150,000. After the initial closing, the securities purchase agreement permits the purchaser to exercise a
“call” right to purchase additional Series D Preferred in multiple draw downs from time to time until December 31,
2013, subject to certain limits, terms and conditions. In March 2013, the company and investors entered into a letter
agreement to the securities purchase agreement dated as of February 15, 2013, modifying the number of shares of
Series D Preferred Stock to be issued upon settlement of any purchaser draw downs made on or after March 18, 2013,
equal to the purchaser investment amount divided by the stated value multiplied by a number agreed upon by the
Company and the purchaser, which shall not be higher than 1.67. Subsequently, on March 21, 2013, we issued 167
shares of Series D Preferred for aggregate proceeds of $100,000. On May 13, 2013, we entered into a letter agreement
amendment to the securities purchase agreement dated as of February 15, 2013 with certain investors, modifying the
number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock that may be issued upon draw downs made on or after May 13, 2013,
equal to the purchaser investment amount divided by the stated value multiplied by a number agreed upon by us and
the purchaser, which shall not be higher than 3.34. The corresponding conversion price into underlying shares of our
common stock is $0.03 per share. On May 13, 2013, we issued 583 shares of Series D Preferred to an investor for
aggregate proceeds of $175,000. As a result of the contingent conversion feature on the Series C Preferred, which
reduced the conversion price from $0.05 to $0.03 per share on the total 260 shares of Series C Preferred Stock issued
and outstanding at May 13, 2013, and which resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we
recognized additional preferred deemed dividends of $104,000. On August 30, 2013, we entered into an agreement to
sell $200,000 in convertible notes. As a result of the sale of these convertible notes and as a result of the contingent
conversion feature on the Series C Preferred and Series D Preferred, which reduced the conversion price from $0.03 to
$0.02 per share on the Series C and from $0.10 to $0.02 per share on the Series D on the total 147 shares and 930
shares, respectively, of Series C Preferred Stock and Series D Preferred Stock issued and outstanding at August 30,
2013, and which resulted in an increase in the number of common shares issuable, we recognized additional preferred
deemed dividends of $36,000 on the Series C Preferred Stock and $465,000 on the Series D Preferred Stock. The net
loss attributable to common shareholders reflects both the net loss and the deemed dividend.

Cash flow analysis

Our primary capital requirement is to fund purchases of solar panels and inverters. Significant sources of liquidity are
cash on hand, cash flows from operating activities, working capital and proceeds from equity financings. As of
September 30, 2013, we had approximately $379,000 in cash on hand. Our potentially available $500,000 line of
credit, less the previously advanced $450,000, is subject to limitations based on the level of our qualifying accounts
receivable, inventory and cash.

Cash used in operating activities was approximately $790,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. Cash
provided by operating activities was primarily due to a $1.2 million increase in accounts payable, a $243,000 decrease
in accounts receivable, a $197,000 decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets, and a $122,000 decrease in
other receivables, partially offset by a $419,000 decrease in accrued liabilities, a $62,000 decrease in liabilities of
discontinued operations and a $62,000 increase in inventory. The increases and decreases in assets and liabilities were
primarily due to the timing of payments and receipts.

Cash provided by financing activities was approximately $1.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we received $550,000 in proceeds from a preferred stock offering,
less $56,000 in payment of placement agent fees and $350,000 in borrowings on our line of credit and $201,000 in
borrowings from a note payable.
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Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reporting of assets, liabilities, sales and expenses, and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements for the years ending
December 31, 2012 and 2011 as filed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K provides a summary of our significant
accounting policies, which are all in accordance with generally accepted accounting policies in the United States.
Certain of our accounting policies are critical to understanding our consolidated financial statements, because their
application requires management to make assumptions about future results and depends to a large extent on
management’s judgment, because past results have fluctuated and are expected to continue to do so in the future.

The application of the accounting policies described in the following paragraphs is highly dependent on critical
estimates and assumptions that are inherently uncertain and highly susceptible to change. For all these policies, we
caution that future events rarely develop exactly as estimated, and the best estimates routinely require adjustment. On
an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions, including those discussed below.
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Revenue recognition. Revenue from sales of products is recognized when: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, (2) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, (3) the sale price is fixed or determinable, and
(4) collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. We recognize revenue when the solar power systems are
shipped to the customer.

Inventory. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (on an average basis) or market value. We determine cost based on
our weighted-average purchase price and include both the costs of acquisition and the shipping costs in our inventory.
We regularly review the cost of inventory against its estimated market value and record a lower of cost or market
write-down to cost of goods sold, if any inventory has a cost in excess of estimated market value. Our inventory
generally has a long life cycle and obsolescence has not historically been a significant factor in its valuation.

Long-lived assets. We periodically review our property and equipment and identifiable intangible assets for possible
impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be fully recoverable.
Assumptions and estimates used in the evaluation of impairment may affect the carrying value of long-lived assets,
which could result in impairment charges in future periods. Significant assumptions and estimates include the
projected cash flows based upon estimated revenue and expense growth rates and the discount rate applied to expected
cash flows. In addition, our depreciation and amortization policies reflect judgments on the estimated useful lives of
assets.

Patent costs.  We capitalize external legal costs and filing fees associated with obtaining or defending our patents.
Upon issuance of new patents or successful defense of existing patents, we amortize these costs using the straight line
method over the shorter of the legal life of the patent or its economic life. We believe the remaining useful life we
assign to these patents, approximately 11.25 years as of September 30, 2013, are reasonable. We periodically review
our patents to determine whether any such cost have been impaired and are no longer being used. To the extent we are
no longer using certain patents, the associated costs will be written off at that time.

Stock-based compensation. We use the Black-Scholes-Merton Options Pricing Model (Black-Scholes) to estimate fair
value of our employee and our non-employee director stock-based awards. Black-Scholes requires various judgmental
assumptions, including estimating stock price volatility, expected option life and forfeiture rates. We measure
compensation expense for non-employee stock-based compensation under ASC 505-50, “Equity-Based Payments to
Non-Employees.” The fair value of the option issued is used to measure the transaction, as this is more reliable than the
fair value of the services received. The estimated fair value is measured utilizing Black-Scholes using the value of our
common stock on the date that the commitment for performance by the counterparty has been reached or the
counterparty’s performance is complete.

Warranty provision. The manufacturer directly warrants the solar panels and inverters for a range from 15 to 25 years.
We warrant the balance of system components of our products against defects in material and workmanship for five
years. We assist our customers in the event of a claim under the manufacturer warranty to replace a defective solar
panel or inverter.

Common stock warrant liabilities.  In March 2009 and February 2011, we issued warrants to purchase shares of our
common stock in connection with certain capital financing transactions. The terms of the warrant agreements related
to these two offerings contained a cash-out provision which may be triggered at the option of the warrant holders if we
“go private,” is acquired for all cash or upon the occurrence of certain other fundamental transactions involving us. In
addition, the terms of the warrant agreement related to the February 2011 offering contain a provision that may require
us to reduce the exercise price of the warrants to purchase shares of our common stock upon the occurrence of certain
lower-priced future offerings of our equity securities. Under the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (“ASC 480”), financial
instruments that may require the issuer to settle the obligation by transferring assets or to reduce the exercise price of
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its warrants to purchase shares of its common stock are classified as a liability. Therefore, we have classified the
warrants as liabilities and will record mark-to-market adjustments to reflect the fair value at each period end.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no material changes or developments to the significant accounting policies discussed in our 2012
Annual Report on Form 10-K or accounting pronouncements issued or adopted, except as described below.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-01, which is included in ASC 210, “Balance Sheet”, “Clarifying the
Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities” (ASU No. 2013-01). This update clarifies that the scope
of ASU 2011-11: “Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities” applies only to derivatives accounted for under
ASC 815 “Derivatives and Hedging”, included bifurcated embedded derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse
repurchase agreements, and securities lending transactions that are either offset in accordance with ASC 210-20-45 or
ASC 815-10-45 or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement. ASU No. 2013-01 is
effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Entities should
provide the required disclosures retrospectively for all comparative periods presented. The adoption of this guidance
impacts presentation disclosures only and did  not have an impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operation or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02, which is included in ASC 220, “Comprehensive Income”,
“Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” (“ASU NO. 2013-02”). This
update requires an entity to provide information about the amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income by component. In addition, an entity is required to present, either on the face of the statement
where net income is presented or in the notes, significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income by the respective line items of net income but only if the amount reclassified is required under
U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP) to be reclassified to net income in its entirety in the same
reporting period. For other amounts that are not required under US GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net
income, an entity is required to cross-reference to other disclosures required under US GAAP that provide additional
detail about those amounts. The amendments of ASU No. 2013-02 do not change the current requirements for
reporting net income or other comprehensive income in financial statements. ASU No. 2013-02 is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods within those years, beginning on or after December 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted.
The adoption of this guidance impacts presentation disclosures only and did not have an impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operation or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04, which is included in ASC 405, “Liabilities”, “Obligations
Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed at the
Reporting Date”. This update provides guidance for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of obligations
resulting from joint and several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation with the scope of
this guidance is fixed at the reporting date, except for obligations addressed within existing guidance in US GAAP.
Examples of obligations within the scope to ASU No. 2013-04 include debt arrangements, other contractual
obligations, and settled litigation and judicial rulings. ASU No. 2013-04 is effective for fiscal years and interim
periods within those years beginning after December 5, 2013. Entities should provide the required disclosures
retrospectively for all comparative periods presented. The adoption of this guidance impacts presentation disclosures
only and will not have an impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operation or cash flows.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05, which is included in ASC 830, “Foreign Currency Matters”,
“Parent’s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups
of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity” (“ASU 2013-05”). This update resolves the
diversity in practice regarding the release into net income of the cumulative translation adjustment upon derecognition
of a subsidiary or group of assets within a foreign entity. ASU No. 2013-05 is effective for fiscal years and interim
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periods within those years beginning after December 5, 2013. ASU No. 2013-05 is not expected to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operation or cash flows.

Seasonality
Our quarterly operating results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter as a result of seasonal changes in
weather as well as changes in state or federal subsidies.
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Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of changes in the value of market risk sensitive instruments caused by fluctuations in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. Changes in these factors could cause fluctuations in our
results of operations and cash flows.

Interest Rate Risk

As of September 30, 2013, we had $350,000 borrowed under our line of credit and $200,000 outstanding under our
debt agreement. Our line of credit bears interest at a rate of 12% per year and our debt agreement bears interest at a
rate of 8% per year.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We do not have any foreign currency exchange risk as purchases of our solar panels from manufacturers outside the
United States and sales of our solar panels to Canada are denominated in U.S. currency.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer who is also our Chief Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2013. Based upon that
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer who is also our Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level as of the end of the period covered by this report. In
designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, we and our management recognize that any controls
and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the
desired control objectives, and that our management necessarily is required to apply its judgment in evaluating and
implementing possible controls and procedures. In addition, the design of any control system is based in part upon
certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events.

The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated
and communicated to the company’s management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Quarterly Evaluation of Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer who is also our  Chief Financial Officer, also
conducted an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) to determine whether any change occurred during the third fiscal quarter of 2013 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Based on that
evaluation, our management concluded that there was no such change during the fiscal quarter ended September 30,
2013.
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PART II
OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Litigation

On May 1, 2012, Suntech America, Inc., a Delaware corporation (Suntech America), filed a complaint for breach of
contract, goods sold and delivered, account stated and open account against us in the Superior Court of the State of
California, County of San Francisco. Suntech America alleged that it delivered products and did not receive full
payment from us. On July 31, 2012, we and Suntech entered into a settlement of this dispute. Because of our inability
to make scheduled settlement payments, on March 15, 2013, Suntech entered a judgment against us in the amount of
$946,438. As of September 30, 2013, Suntech has not sought to enforce its judgment. As of September 30, 2013, we
have included in our Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets a balance due to Suntech America of 946,438.

We are also involved in other litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management, the outcome of such proceedings will not materially affect our financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and information we provide in our press releases, telephonic reports and other
investor communications, may contain forward-looking statements with respect to anticipated future events and our
projected financial performance, operations and competitive position that are subject to risks and uncertainties that
could cause our actual results to differ materially from those forward-looking statements and our expectations. Future
economic and industry trends that could potentially affect revenue, profitability, and growth remain difficult to
predict. The factors underlying our forecasts and forward-looking statements are dynamic and subject to change. As a
result, any forecasts or forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are given and do not necessarily
reflect our outlook at any other point in time.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

We will need additional capital in the future to fund our business, and financing may not be available.

We expect our currently available capital resources and cash flows from operations to be insufficient to meet our
working capital and capital expenditure requirements. Our cash requirements will depend on numerous factors,
including the amount of our sales, the timing and levels of products purchased, pricing, payment terms and credit
limits from manufacturers, the availability and terms of asset-based credit facilities, the timing and level of our
accounts receivable collections, and our ability to manage our business towards profitability.

We expect to need to raise additional funds through public or private debt or equity financings or enter into new
asset-based or other credit facilities, but such financings will likely dilute our stockholders. Although we have recently
entered into a loan and security agreement with Alpha Capital Anstalt (the “Lender”) and Collateral Services, LLC for
the Lender’s provision of financing for one year, against our accounts receivable and inventory, the loans to be made
by the Lender are discretionary, they are based upon our accounts receivable and inventory  and we must comply with
certain conditions in order to obtain funding and therefore, there can be no assurance that such loans will be
made.  We cannot assure you that any additional financing that we may need will be available on terms favorable to
us, or at all. Our recent loss of S-3 eligibility due to our Nasdaq delisting and limited availability of authorized and
unissued common stock may make it more difficult to raise such funds. In addition, on July 19, 2013 we announced
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the termination of the agreement and plan of merger which contemplated a merger in which CBD would become our
parent company. This event may diminish our access to additional financing. If adequate funds are not available or are
not available on acceptable terms, we may not be able to take advantage of business opportunities, develop new
products or otherwise respond to competitive pressures. In any such case, our business, operating results or financial
condition could be materially adversely affected.

If we default on our secured loan with the Lender, we could lose all of our assets

Our loan and security agreement with the Lender and Collateral Services, LLC is secured by all of our assets. The
agreement contains both affirmative and negative covenants, including covenants regarding incurrence of
indebtedness, liens, mergers and acquisitions, subject to materiality and other qualifications and exceptions customary
for a credit facility of this size and type. Our obligations under the agreement may be accelerated upon the occurrence
of an event of default in accordance with the terms of the agreement, which includes customary events of default,
including payment defaults, the inaccuracy of representations or warranties, cross-defaults related to material
indebtedness, bankruptcy and insolvency related defaults, defaults relating to certain other matters, and loss of
perfected lien status.  If we fail to comply with these covenants or if we fail to make certain payments under the
secured loans when due, the Lender could declare our loans in default.  If we default on the loan, the Lender has the
right to seize our assets that secure the loan, which would force us to suspend all operations.
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We have a history of losses and there can be no assurance that we will generate or sustain positive earnings.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we had a net loss of ($8,622,393) and ($4,631,621),
respectively, and for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012, we had a net loss of
($2,235,799) and ($7,286,454), respectively.  We cannot be certain that our business strategy will ever be successful.
Our likelihood of success must be considered in light of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications and delays
frequently encountered in connection with any emerging business operations. If we fail to address any of these risks or
difficulties adequately, our business will likely suffer. Future revenues and profits, if any, will depend upon various
factors, including the success, if any, of our expansion plans, marketability of our instruments and services, our ability
to maintain favorable relations with manufacturers and customers, and general economic conditions. There is no
assurance that we can operate profitably or that we will successfully implement our plans. There can be no assurance
that we will ever generate positive earnings.

Our financial statements had been prepared assuming that we will continue as a going concern.

Our significant operating losses, negative cash flow from operations, and challenges in rapidly securing alternative
sources of supply for solar panels, raise substantial uncertainty about our ability to continue as a going concern. The
accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty, and contemplate the realization of assets and the settlement of liabilities and commitments in the normal
course of business. The report of our independent registered public accounting firm for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 included an explanatory paragraph expressing substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern in their audit report included herein. If we cannot generate the required revenues and gross margin to achieve
profitability or obtain additional capital on acceptable terms, we will need to substantially revise our business plan or
cease operations and an investor could suffer the loss of a significant portion or all of his investment in our
company.  As a result of our delisting from the Nasdaq Capital Market in September 2012, we are no longer eligible to
file new registration statements on Form S-3, which may make it more costly and more difficult for us to obtain
additional equity financing.  We currently anticipate that we will retain all of our earnings, if any, for development of
our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on common stock in the foreseeable future

We are dependent upon our solar panel suppliers for regular shipments of products; however we have not been timely
in payment to them in recent periods, which has resulted in disruption in our supply of products. If we do not quickly
establish replacement sources of supply, our operations will be further adversely affected.

Historically, we obtained virtually all of our solar panels from Suntech and Lightway. During 2012, because of our
cash position and liquidity constraints, we were late in making payments to both of these suppliers. On March 30,
2012, pursuant to our Supply Agreement with Lightway, we issued 1,900,000 shares of our common stock to
Lightway in partial payment of our past due account payable to them. At the time of issuance, the shares were valued
at $1,045,000. On May 1, 2012, Suntech filed a complaint for breach of contract, goods sold and delivered, account
stated and open account against us in the Superior Court of the State of California,  County of San
Francisco. Suntech alleged that it delivered products and did not receive full payment from us. On July 31, 2012, we
and Suntech entered into a settlement of this dispute. Because of our inability to make scheduled settlement
payments, on March 15, 2013, Suntech entered a judgment against us in the amount of $946,438. As of September 30,
2013, Suntech has not sought to enforce its judgment. As of September 30, 2013, we have included in our Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheets a balance due to Suntech America of $946,438. We currently have no unshipped orders
from Suntech or Lightway.
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In May 2013, we entered into a new supply agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Environmental
Engineering Group Pty Ltd (“EEG”), an assembler of polycrystalline modules located in Australia. In August 2013, we
began receiving product from EEG and began shipping product to customers during the third calendar quarter of this
year. We anticipate increased shipments to customers during the fourth quarter of 2013. We have remaining panel
inventory on hand as of September 30, 2013 and anticipate receiving a final shipment of product in November 2013,
fulfilling our purchase order with EEG. In September 2013, we entered into a second supply agreement for assembly
of our proprietary modules with Tianwei New Energy Co, Ltd., a panel supplier located in China. We anticipate
beginning to receive product from this new supplier beginning in January 2014. Although we believe we can find
alternative suppliers for solar panels manufactured to our specifications, our operations would be disrupted unless we
are able to rapidly secure alternative sources of supply, our inventory and revenue could diminish significantly,
causing disruption to our operations.

We are dependent upon our key suppliers for the components used in our systems and we must arrange for cost
competitive manufacturing of our proprietary solar panels in order to grow our business; our suppliers are dependent
upon the continued availability and pricing of silicon and other raw materials used in solar modules .

Historically, we obtained virtually all of our solar panels from Suntech and Lightway. During 2012, because of our
cash position and liquidity constraints, we were late in making payments to both of these suppliers. We currently have
no unshipped orders from Suntech or Lightway. In May 2013, we entered into a new supply agreement for assembly
of our proprietary modules with Environmental Engineering Group Pty Ltd (“EEG”), an assembler of polycrystalline
modules located in Australia. In August 2013, we began receiving product from EEG and began shipping product to
customers during the third calendar quarter of this year. We anticipate increased shipments to customers during the
fourth quarter of 2013. We have remaining panel inventory on hand as of September 30, 2013 and anticipate receiving
a final shipment of product in November 2013, fulfilling our purchase order with EEG. In September 2013, we
entered into a second supply agreement for assembly of our proprietary modules with Tianwei New Energy Co, Ltd., a
panel supplier located in China. We anticipate beginning to receive product from this new supplier beginning in the
first quarter of 2014. 

It is critical to the growth of our revenue that our products be high quality while offered at competitive pricing. We
believe that we will need to reduce the unit production cost of our products over time to obtain and maintain our
ability to offer competitively priced products. Our ability to achieve cost reductions will depend on our ability to
maintain favorable supplier contracts and to increase sales volumes so we can achieve economies of scale. We cannot
provide assurance that we will be able to achieve any such production cost reductions. If we fail to negotiate better
terms and maintain our relationships with our current suppliers or develop new supplier relationships, we may not
achieve production cost reductions necessary to competitively price our products, which could adversely affect or
limit our sales and growth.

We are currently subject to market prices for the components that we purchase, which are subject to fluctuation
beyond our control. An increase in the price of components used in our systems could result in an increase in costs to
our customers and could have a material adverse effect on our revenues and demand for our products.

Interruptions in our ability to procure needed components for our systems, whether due to discontinuance by our
suppliers, delays or failures in delivery, shortages caused by inadequate production capacity or unavailability,
financial failure, manufacturing quality, or for other reasons, would adversely affect or limit our sales and growth.
There is no assurance that we will continue to find qualified manufacturers on acceptable terms and, if we do, there
can be no assurance that product quality will continue to be acceptable, which could lead to a loss of sales and
revenues.
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The U.S. Government imposed tariffs on solar panels manufactured in China causing the prices we pay for solar
panels to increase. This could cause customer demand for our products to decrease.

A group of solar panel manufacturers with domestic U.S. production facilities requested the U.S. Government to
impose tariffs on the import of solar panels manufactured in China, based on allegations of unfair competition and of
subsidization of prices for Chinese-made solar panels by the Chinese Government. In March 2012, the United States
Commerce Department issued a preliminary decision imposing tariffs between 2.9% and 4.73%. In May 2012, a
further decision by the Commerce Department was issued providing for a provisional tariff averaging 31% on 61
Chinese manufacturers caused by “dumping” solar panels into the U.S. market at prices below their actual cost. On
October 11, the Commerce Department announced its final decision on these tariffs affirming its preliminary findings
that modules containing cells of Chinese origin are subject to anti-dumping and countervailing duties (AD/CVD)
when imported into the United States. The AD rates to be applied at the border range from 7.78% to 21.19% for
participating respondents and up to 239.42% for non-participants. The CVD rates range from 14.78 to 15.97%. The
AD and CVD rates will be applied collectively. The final step in the proceedings occurred on November 7, 2012,
when the International Trade Commission (ITC) rendered a final affirmative injury determination concluding that the
subject Chinese imports caused injury to U.S. manufacturers of crystalline-silicon solar cells and modules. The ITC
also decided that the AD and CVD duties should not apply retroactively and rendered a negative "critical
circumstances" determination. Thus, the effective dates were March 26, 2012 for CVD duties and May 25, 2012 for
AD duties. Given the large current market share of solar panels manufactured in China, the imposition of these tariffs
will have had far reaching, industry-wide effects, and have been disruptive to many established supply relationships.
In fact, the imposition of these tariffs have caused prices for solar power systems in the United States to increase and
resulted in reduced market demand for the purchase of solar power systems.

Our historical solar panel suppliers, Suntech and Lightway, both manufactured panels for us in China. As a result,
aggregate AD and CVD duties of 30.66% (for Lightway) and 35.97% (for Suntech) were imposed on our purchases.
The resulting increase in our product prices harmed our competitive position in selling our products, and adversely
affected our results of operations. Our new supply agreements with EEG and Tianwei provides for solar modules
made with Taiwan cells and therefore are not subject to punitive Chinese tariffs.
  ‘
We have experienced significant customer concentration in recent periods, and our revenue levels could be adversely
affected if any significant customer fails to purchase products from us at anticipated levels.

The relative magnitude and the mix of revenue from our largest customers have varied significantly quarter to quarter,
but have been concentrated on a small number of large customers. During the last two years, two customers have
accounted for a significant portion of our revenues: Lennox International Inc. (Lennox), a global leader in the heating
and air conditioning markets and Lennar Corporation (Lennar), a leading national homebuilder. Through June 30,
2013, Lennar had historically only ordered solar power systems from us for installation on 234 new homes, which was
below their 600 home order commitment volume. No further orders have been received from Lennar since April 25,
2012. On December 28, 2012, we filed a complaint against Lennar in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of Florida stating claims for breach of contract under a supply agreement with us.   On May 21, 2013, we and
Lennar entered into a final and comprehensive settlement of this legal dispute. Terms of the settlement are
confidential per the parties' settlement agreement. The volume of orders from key customers is difficult to predict.
Fluctuations in order levels from significant customers could cause our revenue levels to correspondingly fluctuate,
and the failure by any significant customer to maintain anticipated order levels could cause our revenue to fall short of
expectations and adversely affect our results of operations.

We may fail to realize some or all of the anticipated benefits of our shift to a design and manufacturing business
model in California and throughout North America, which may adversely affect the value of our common stock.
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The success of our exit from the solar system installation business in California in September 2010, and our shift to
focus exclusively on a design and manufacturing business model will depend, in large part, on our ability to
successfully expand our distribution channels to include authorized dealers in California, as well as elsewhere in
North America and Australia, and to accelerate the growth of our design and manufacturing business. California is the
largest state in the country for solar products, accounting for approximately 50 percent of the U.S. market. Therefore,
we continue to pursue developing distribution channel partners in California and are beginning to develop distribution
channels in Australia given our merger plans with CBD.

If we are not able to achieve the expansion of our design and manufacturing business and meet our revenue growth
and cost reduction objectives within the anticipated time frame, or at all, the anticipated benefits and cost savings of
our change in strategic focus and our restructuring may not be realized or may take longer to realize than expected,
and the value of our common stock may be adversely affected.
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Specifically, risks in the operations of our business in order to realize the anticipated benefits of the change to a design
and manufacturing business model include, among other things:

· failure to arrange for cost competitive manufacturing of our proprietary solar panels;
· failure to find and develop distribution relationships with new channel partners, particularly in the California

and Australia market;
· failure to successfully manage existing distribution relationships;
· the loss of key employees critical to the ongoing operation of our business;
· failure to effectively coordinate sales and marketing efforts to communicate the capabilities of our company;
· unpredictability and delays in the timing of projected distribution orders, and resulting accumulation of

excess product inventory;
· failure to focus and develop our distribution product and service offerings quickly and effectively;
· failure to successfully develop new products and services on a timely basis that address the market

opportunities; and
· unexpected revenue attrition or delays.

In addition, the shift in our business model may result in additional or unforeseen expenses, and the anticipated cost
reduction benefits may not be realized.

We are exposed to risks associated with the weak global economy, which increase the uncertainty of project financing
for solar installations and the risk of non-payment from customers.

The continuing tight credit markets and weak global economy are contributing to an ongoing slowdown in the solar
industry, which may worsen if these economic conditions are prolonged or deteriorate further. The market for
installation of solar power systems depends largely on commercial and consumer capital spending. Economic
uncertainty exacerbates negative trends in these areas of spending, and may cause customers to push out, cancel, or
refrain from placing orders, which may reduce our net sales. Difficulties in obtaining capital and adverse market
conditions may also lead to the inability of some customers to obtain affordable financing, including traditional
project financing and tax-incentive based financing and home equity based financing, resulting in lower sales to
potential customers with liquidity issues, and may lead to an increase of incidents where our customers are unwilling
or unable to pay for systems they purchase, and additional bad debt expense for us. Further, these conditions and
uncertainty about future economic conditions make it challenging for us to obtain equity and debt financing to meet
our working capital requirements to support our business, forecast our operating results, make business decisions, and
identify the risks that may affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. If we are unable to timely
and appropriately adapt to changes resulting from the difficult macroeconomic environment, our business, financial
condition or results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Our technology may encounter unexpected problems or may not be protectable, which could adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

Our technology is relatively new and has not been tested in installation settings for a sufficient period of time to prove
its long-term effectiveness and benefits. Problems may occur with products or their underlying components that are
unexpected and could have a material adverse effect on our business or results of operations. We have been issued
several U.S. and foreign patents that cover our Andalay solar panel technology. We have several other pending patent
applications covering Andalay technology. Ultimately, we may not be able to realize the benefits from any patent that
is issued.
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Because our industry is highly competitive and has low barriers to entry, we may lose market share to larger
companies that are better equipped to weather a decline in market conditions due to increased competition.

Our industry is highly competitive and fragmented, is subject to rapid change and has low barriers to entry.
Competition in the solar power services industry may increase in the future, partly due to low barriers to entry, as well
as from other alternative energy sources now in existence or developed in the future. Increased competition could
result in price reductions, reduced margins or loss of market share and greater competition for qualified technical
personnel. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against current and future
competitors. If we are unable to compete effectively, or if competition results in a deterioration of market conditions,
our business and results of operations would be adversely affected.

Our profitability depends, in part, on our success and brand recognition and we could lose our competitive advantage
if we are not able to protect our trademarks and patents against infringement, and any related litigation could be
time-consuming and costly.

On August 23, 2013, we received formal notice of termination of our license agreement with Westinghouse Electric
Corporation. due to the non-payment of past due license fees. To date, we owe Westinghouse $1,020,856.  Due to our
limited resources, it is unlikely that payment will be made for past due license fees any time in the near future. While
the Westinghouse trademark is an important, world-wide recognized brand, we believe the most important
competitive factors relating to our products are their effectiveness, efficiency and consumer cost, i.e., price point, and
ultimately to the extent the cost of the Westinghouse license becomes prohibitive, it negatively impacts our cost of
goods. However, we do not have the ability to accurately estimate the true impact of the loss of the use of such
trademark.   We have registered the “Andalay” trademark with the United States Patent and Trademark Office related to
our panel technology. Use of our trademarks or similar trademarks by competitors in geographic areas in which we
have not yet operated could adversely affect our ability to use or gain protection for our brand in those markets, which
could weaken our brand and harm our business and competitive position. In addition, any litigation relating to
protecting our trademarks and patents against infringement could be time consuming and costly.

We may have warranty obligations to Real Goods Solar, Inc. that could adversely affect our results of operations.

In connection with our exit from the solar system installation business in California, Real Goods Solar, Inc. (Real
Goods) agreed to undertake primary, “first responder” responsibility for future warranty service obligations relating to
the approximately 800 installations for SunRun that we have previously completed (the “Andalay Installations”). We
retain secondary warranty responsibility on the Andalay Installations, in the event that Real Goods fails to perform the
warranty. We will reimburse Real Goods for actual warranty service work completed by Real Goods related to these
“first responder” installations. Other than solar panels and inverters that are covered under the manufacturer warranty,
we provided our customers for WS Installations a 5-year or a 10-year warranty. We have accrued, and included within
“Liabilities of Discontinued Operations” in our consolidated balance sheets for June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, a
liability of approximately $1.0 million and $1.1 million, respectively, to cover these warranty obligations. That
amount is intended to cover both the Andalay Installations and certain installation projects assigned to Real Goods.
The terms of the Warranty Agreements provided that we establish an escrow account as a source of funds from which
to satisfy our obligation to pay Real Goods for its fees and reimburse it for its expenses for warranty work performed
by it pursuant to the Warranty Agreements which are not paid to Real Goods from the company directly. In March
2011, we entered into an Escrow Agreement with Real Goods and deposited $200,000 into an escrow fund. The
amount is reflected in long-term assets of discontinued operations in our consolidated balance sheets. The escrow
deposit will be released to us in the amount of $40,000, or one-fifth of the remaining escrow funds, per year after each
of the fifth through the ninth anniversary of the escrow agreement. If Real Goods fails to perform under the assigned
warranty coverage, or the actual warranty expenses exceed the amounts we have accrued, we could incur significant
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Impairment charges could reduce our results of operations.

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standard
Codification (ASC) 350, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (ASC 350), we test intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives for impairment on an annual basis, and on an interim basis if an event occurs that might reduce the fair
value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. We also assess the fair value of our inventory and other tangible
assets as of the end of each reporting period. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we recorded a $206,000
non-cash inventory write-down, which represented an adjustment to the carrying value of our older, smaller-format
solar panels and older micro-inverter inventory to reflect the decline in market prices compared to our original cost, a
$65,000 write-off of accumulated inventory overhead costs and a $112,000 non-cash inventory write-off of obsolete
inventory. As a result of our exit from the installation business, during the year ended December 31, 2010, we
impaired approximately $2.0 million for inventory, equipment and other assets no longer needed in our business. We
may determine that further asset impairment charges are needed in the future. Although any such impairment charge
would be a non-cash expense, further impairment of our tangible or intangible assets could materially increase our
expenses and reduce our results of operations.

Our success depends on our key personnel, including our executive officers, and the loss of key personnel or the
transition of key personnel, including our Chief Executive Officer, could disrupt our business.

Our success greatly depends on the continued contributions of our senior management and other key sales, marketing
and operations personnel. These employees may voluntarily terminate their employment at any time. We may not be
able to successfully retain existing personnel or identify, hire and integrate new personnel; and we do not have key
person insurance policies in place for these employees. Since May 7, 2012, Margaret Randazzo, our Chief Financial
Officer and a director, has acted as our Chief Executive Officer.

If we are unable to attract, train and retain highly qualified personnel, the quality of our services may decline and we
may not successfully execute our internal growth strategies.

Our success depends in large part upon our ability to continue to attract, train, motivate and retain highly skilled and
experienced employees, including technical personnel. Qualified technical employees periodically are in great demand
and may be unavailable in the time frame required to satisfy our customers’ requirements. While we currently have
available technical expertise sufficient for the requirements of our business, expansion of our business could require
us to employ additional highly skilled technical personnel. We expect competition for such personnel to increase as
the market for solar power systems expands.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to attract and retain sufficient numbers of highly skilled technical
employees in the future. The loss of personnel or our inability to hire or retain sufficient personnel at competitive rates
of compensation could impair our ability to secure and complete customer engagements and could harm our business.

Unexpected warranty expenses or service claims could reduce our profits.

We maintain a warranty reserve on our balance sheet for potential warranty or service claims that could occur in the
future. This reserve is adjusted based on our ongoing operating experience with equipment and installations. It is
possible, perhaps due to bad supplier material or defective installations, that we would have actual expenses
substantially in excess of the reserves we maintain. Our failure to accurately predict future warranty claims could
result in unexpected profit volatility.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR INDUSTRY

We have experienced technological changes in our industry. New technologies may prove inappropriate and result in
liability to us or may not gain market acceptance by our customers.

The solar power industry (and the alternative energy industry, in general) is subject to technological change. Our
future success will depend on our ability to appropriately respond to changing technologies and changes in function of
products and quality. If we adopt products and technologies that are not attractive to consumers, we may not be
successful in capturing or retaining a significant share of our market. In addition, some new technologies are relatively
untested and unperfected and may not perform as expected or as desired, in which event our adoption of such products
or technologies may cause us to lose money.

A drop in the retail price of conventional energy or non-solar alternative energy sources may negatively impact our
profitability.

We believe that an end customer’s decision to purchase or install solar power capabilities is primarily driven by the
cost and return on investment resulting from solar power systems. Fluctuations in economic and market conditions
that affect the prices of conventional and non-solar alternative energy sources, such as decreases in the prices of oil
and other fossil fuels, could cause the demand for solar power systems to decline, which would have a negative impact
on our profitability. Changes in utility electric rates or net metering policies could also have a negative effect on our
business.

Existing regulations, and changes to such regulations, may present technical, regulatory and economic barriers to the
purchase and use of solar power products, which may significantly reduce demand for our products and services.

New government regulations or utility policies pertaining to solar power systems are unpredictable and may result in
significant additional expenses or delays and, as a result, could cause a significant reduction in demand for solar
energy systems and our services. For example, there currently exist metering caps in certain jurisdictions which
effectively limit the aggregate amount of power that may be sold by solar power generators into the power grid.

Our business depends on the availability of rebates, tax credits and other financial incentives; reduction, elimination or
uncertainty of which would reduce the demand for our products and services.

Many states offer incentives to offset the cost of solar power systems. These systems can take many forms, including
direct rebates, state tax credits, system performance payments and Renewable Energy Credits (RECs). Moreover, the
federal government currently offers a 30% tax credit for the installation of solar power systems. Businesses may also
elect to accelerate the depreciation on their system over five years. Uncertainty about the introduction of, reduction in
or elimination of such incentives or delays or interruptions in the implementation of favorable federal or state laws
could substantially increase the cost of our systems to our customers, resulting in significant reductions in demand for
our services, which would negatively impact our sales.

If solar power technology is not suitable for widespread adoption or sufficient demand for solar power products does
not develop or takes longer to develop than we anticipate, our sales would decline and we would be unable to achieve
or sustain profitability .

The market for solar power products is emerging and rapidly evolving, and its future success is uncertain. Many
factors will influence the widespread adoption of solar power technology and demand for solar power products,
including:
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· cost effectiveness of solar power technologies as compared with conventional and non-solar alternative
energy technologies;

· performance and reliability of solar power products as compared with conventional and non-solar alternative
energy products;

· capital expenditures by customers that tend to decrease if the U.S. economy slows; and
· availability of government subsidies and incentives.

If solar power technology proves unsuitable for widespread commercial deployment or if demand for solar power
products fails to develop sufficiently, we would be unable to generate enough revenue to achieve and sustain
profitability. In addition, demand for solar power products in the markets and geographic regions we target may not
develop or may develop more slowly than we anticipate.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMMON STOCK

We were delisted from the Nasdaq Capital Market and there is a limited trading volume for our common stock on the
OTCQB.

In September 2012, our common stock was delisted from the Nasdaq Capital Market. Our common stock, which
currently trades on the OTCQB, does not have substantial trading volume. As a result, relatively small trades of our
common stock may have a significant impact on the price of our common stock and, therefore, may contribute to the
price volatility of our common stock.  Because of the limited trading volume in our common stock and the price
volatility of our common stock, you may be unable to sell your shares of common stock when you desire or at the
price you desire. The inability to sell your shares in a declining market because of such illiquidity or at a price you
desire may substantially increase your risk of loss.

In addition, the delisting of our common stock from the Nasdaq Capital Market could materially adversely affect our
ability to raise capital on terms acceptable to us or at all and could adversely affect institutional investor interest.

Our stockholders may be diluted by the conversion of our preferred stock and the exercise of warrants, which
currently would exceed our total authorized shares of common stock; in the event we have a “change of control” or if we
fail to obtain an increase in our number of authorized shares of common stock, or if we otherwise fail to comply with
the terms of the Preferred Stock, we may be in default and face demands for redemption and significant penalties.

On February 17, 2011, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with accredited investors, pursuant to which
we sold to such investors our Series B 4% Convertible Preferred (“Series B Preferred”), and our Series K Warrants. On
October 18, 2012, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with accredited investors, pursuant to which we
sold to such investors our Series C 8% Convertible Preferred (Series C Preferred). On February 15, 2013, we entered
into a Securities Purchase Agreement with accredited investors pursuant to which we sold to such investors our Series
D 8% Convertible Preferred Stock (Series D Preferred), and together with the Series B and C Preferred (the “Preferred
Stock”).  The conversion price of the Preferred Stock is subject to adjustment downward in the event that we sell
common stock (or securities convertible into or exercisable for shares of common stock) at an effective price below
the conversion price of such Preferred Stock. If the price adjustment provisions are triggered, then the number of
shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Preferred Stock are subject to increase. On August 30, 2013,
we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain institutional accredited investors relating to the sale and
issuance of a convertible note in the principal amount of $200,000 that matures August 29, 2015 and is convertible
into shares of our common stock, at any time after issuance, at the option of the purchaser, at a conversion price equal
to $.02, subject to adjustment upon the happening of certain events, including stock dividends, stock splits and the
issuance of common stock equivalents at a price below the conversion price. When the investors convert our Preferred
Stock and convertible note, our stockholders may experience dilution in the net tangible book value of their common
stock. In addition, the sale or availability for sale of the underlying shares in the marketplace could depress our stock
price. Except for the Series D Preferred, we have registered all of the underlying shares of common stock relating to
the Preferred Stock and our outstanding warrants. As a result, the investors could resell the underlying shares
immediately upon issuance, which may result in significant downward pressure on the market price of our stock.   In
connection with the Series D Preferred we have granted the purchasers “piggy-back” registration rights to include the
underlying shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series D Preferred in future registration
statements, if any are filed by us.

In addition, the terms of our Preferred Stock include various agreements and negative covenants on our part, including
covenants on our part to maintain and keep available sufficient authorized shares of our common stock to support the
conversion in full of our outstanding shares of preferred stock. As a result of our financing on August 30, 2013, the
effective conversion price of various shares of outstanding Preferred Stock was adjusted downward to $0.02 per share
of common stock. In the event we fail to comply with those provisions, or if a “change of control” of the Company
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occurs, it could constitute a “triggering event” (as defined in the Certificates of Designation which designate the rights
of the  three series of Preferred Stock), and the holders of our Preferred Stock could then demand that all of the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock be redeemed for cash (in certain circumstances generally within our control), or
under certain circumstances, for shares of our common stock. Any such demand for redemption in cash could have a
material adverse affect on our financial position and liquidity, and any demand for redemption in stock could have a
material dilutive effect for our stockholders. In addition, in certain such triggering events, the dividend rate on our
outstanding Preferred Stock is subject to increase to 18% per annum thereafter.
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Future sales of common stock by our existing stockholders may cause our stock price to fall.

The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales by our existing stockholders of shares of
common stock in the market, or the perception that these sales could occur. These sales might also make it more
difficult for us to sell equity securities at a time and price that we deem appropriate. As of November 1, 2013, we had
102,044,402 shares of common stock outstanding (which includes 15,952 unvested shares of restricted stock granted
to our directors and our employees), 920 shares of Series D Preferred that are convertible into 46,000,000 shares of
common stock, 97 shares of Series C Preferred that are convertible into 4,833,350 shares of common stock, 712 shares
of Series B Preferred that are convertible into 32,020,235 shares of common stock, and we had warrants to purchase
3,398,045 shares of common stock and options to purchase 268,704 shares of common stock outstanding.

All of the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of our outstanding vested options will be freely tradable
without restriction under the federal securities laws unless purchased by our affiliates. The shares of common stock
issuable upon exercise of our outstanding warrants are generally covered by effective registration statements which
permit the underlying shares issuable upon their exercise to be freely tradable in the public market.

Our stock price may be volatile, which could result in substantial losses for investors.

The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could fluctuate widely in response to various
factors, many of which are beyond our control, including the following:

· technological innovations or new products and services by us or our competitors;
· announcements or press releases relating to the energy sector or to our business or prospects;
· additions or departures of key personnel;
· regulatory, legislative or other developments affecting us or the solar power industry generally;
· our ability to execute our business plan;
· operating results that fall below expectations;
· volume and timing of customer orders;
· industry developments;
· economic and other external factors; and
· period-to-period fluctuations in our financial results.
· future developments relating to the status of a business combination with CBD.

In addition, the securities markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that
are unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. These market fluctuations may also significantly
affect the market price of our common stock.
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RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMPANY

The recently terminated Merger Agreement with CBD could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, and financial condition.

On May 7, 2012, we entered into a merger agreement with CBD Energy Limited, an Australian corporation (CBD).
We had originally targeted completion of the merger during the third quarter of 2012, however the target date for
completion had been repeatedly delayed, and the necessary registration statement had yet to be completed and filed.
The uncertainty resulted in a disruption in our supply relationships, leading to a significant decline in our revenue and
the implementation of significant cost reductions including the layoff of employees during the time we pursued the
merger. Given the continued delays and uncertainty of whether and when the closing conditions for the merger as set
for in the merger agreement will be satisfied, we terminated the merger agreement with CBD effective July 18,
2013. We are now committed to focus our attention on rebuilding our core business, expanding our current product
offerings and exploring strategic opportunities.

If we are unable to successfully rebuild our core business, expand our current product offerings or determine viable
strategic opportunities, our business, operating results or financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the federal securities laws, which impose additional burdens on us.

We are a public reporting company and, accordingly, subject to the information and reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act and other federal securities laws, including compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. As a
public company, these rules and regulations result in increased compliance costs and make certain activities more time
consuming and costly.

Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes our board to create new series of preferred stock without further approval
by our stockholders, which could adversely affect the rights of the holders of our common stock.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to fix and determine the relative rights and preferences of preferred stock.
Our Board of Directors also has the authority to issue preferred stock without further stockholder approval. As a
result, our Board of Directors could authorize the issuance of new series of preferred stock that would grant to holders
the preferred right to our assets upon liquidation, the right to receive dividend payments before dividends are
distributed to the holders of common stock and the right to the redemption of the shares, together with a premium,
prior to the redemption of our common stock. In addition, our Board of Directors could authorize the issuance of new
series of preferred stock that has greater voting power than our common stock or that is convertible into our common
stock, which could decrease the relative voting power of our common stock or result in dilution to our existing
stockholders.
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Item 2.    Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

As a result of the $500,000 loan and security agreement entered into on September 30, 2013, we issued to the lender
50 shares of our Series D Preferred stock for the $50,000 loan origination fee. We also issued 333,229 shares of
common stock during the three months ended September 30, 2013, in lieu of cash dividends on outstanding shares of
Series D Preferred stock. These securities were issued pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. The holders
represented their intention to acquire the securities for investment only and not with a view towards distribution. The
holders were given adequate information about us to make an informed investment decision. We did not engage in any
general solicitation or advertising. We directed our transfer agent to issue the stock certificates with the appropriate
restrictive legend affixed to the restricted stock.

Subsequent to September 30, 2013, we issued options exercisable for an aggregate of (i) 3,900,000 shares of our
common stock (975,000 per director) to our non-employee directors and (ii) 2,500,000 shares of common stock to our
Chief Executive Officer, all of which options are exercisable at an exercise price of $.03 per share, terminate after five
years and vest over a three year period (one third vesting on the date of issuance and the second and third vesting
occurring on November 6, 2014 and November 6, 2015. In addition we issued 2,500,000 shares of restricted stock to
eight employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, which vest quarterly over a one year period with one fourth
vesting on the issuance date and the second, third and fourth vesting occurring on February 6, 2014, May 6, 2014 and
August 6, 2014. These securities were issued pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. The holders
represented their intention to acquire the securities for investment only and not with a view towards distribution. The
holders were given adequate information about us to make an informed investment decision. We did not engage in any
general solicitation or advertising. The securities were issued with the appropriate restrictive legend affixed to the
restricted stock.

Item 3.    Defaults upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4.   Mine Safety Disclosure.

Not Applicable

Item 5.    Other Information.

On November 6, 2013, we expanded the size of our Board of Directors to five members and Margaret R. Randazzo,
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer was appointed to fill the vacancy on the Board.  In addition
Mark Kalow was appointed as the Chairman of the Board.

On November 6, 2013, the Board authorized the issuance of options exercisable for 975,000 shares of common stock
to each non-employee member of the Board. The options are exercisable at an exercise price of $.03 per share and
vesting as to one-third of the shares immediately, one-third of the shares on November 6, 2014 and one-third of the
shares on November 6, 2015. In addition, the Board agreed to pay each of the Chairman of the Board and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee as compensation for their service in such roles a cash fee of $1,000 per month,
payable quarterly. The Board also granted Margaret R. Randazzo (i) an option exercisable for 2,500,000 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $.03 per share and vesting as to one-third of the shares immediately, one-third of
the shares on November 6, 2014 and one-third of the shares on November 6, 2014 and (ii) 1,250,000 shares of
restricted stock vesting quarterly over a one year period with one-fourth vesting immediately and one-fourth vesting
on each of February 6, May 6, and August 6, 2014.
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Item 6. EXHIBITS.

Exhibit 
Number Description

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K, dated August 3, 2006)

3.2 By-laws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
August 3, 2006)

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 to the August 2006 8-K)

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.4 to our Current Report on Form 10-Q filed on July 30, 2010)

3.5 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation as filed with the Delaware Secretary of
State on April 6, 2011 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to our Current Report on
Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2011)

3.6 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated September 19, 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 23,
2013)

3.7 Correction to amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated September 20, 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 23,
2013)

4.1 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations with respect to Series B 4%
Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Certificate of Designation”), as filed on February 17, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 17,
2011)

4.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Series B Certificate of Designation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3(i) to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 24, 2011)

4.3 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series C 8% Convertible
Preferred Stock, as filed on February 17, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 19, 2012)

4.4 Certificate of Amendment to the Series B Certificate of Designation, dated as of October 18, 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 19,
2012)

4.5 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series D 8% Convertible
Preferred Stock, as filed on February 14, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 15, 2013)
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4.6 Form of Convertible Note due August 29, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 5, 2013).

4.7 Form of Loan and Security Agreement by and among the Company, Alpha Capital Anstalt and
Collateral Services, LLC dated as of September 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 2, 2013).

10.1 *‡FourthAmendment to the Andalay Solar, Inc. 2006 Incentive Stock Plan, effective March 10, 2010

10.2  *‡ Fifth Amendment to the Andalay Solar, Inc. 2006 Incentive Stock Plan, effective July 25, 2013

10.3 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement by and among Westinghouse Solar, Inc. and the Purchasers
thereto, dated as of August 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on September 5, 2013).

31 * Section 302 Certification of Principal Executive and Financial Officer

32 * Section 906 Certification of Principal Executive and Financial Officer

101.INS  *XBRL Taxonomy Extension Instance Document †

101.SCH  *XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Linkbase Document †

101.CAL  *XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document †

101.DEF  *XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document †

101.LAB  *XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document †

101.PRE  *XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document †

* filed herewith

‡ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

† Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files in Exhibit 101 hereto are
deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those
sections.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated:  November 12, 2013 /s/ Margaret R. Randazzo
Margaret R. Randazzo,
Director, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer
and
Principal Accounting Officer)
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3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report
on Form 8-K, dated August 3, 2006)

3.2 By-laws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K, dated
August 3, 2006)

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 to the August 2006 8-K)

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.4 to our Current Report on Form 10-Q filed on July 30, 2010)

3.5 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation as filed with the Delaware Secretary of
State on April 6, 2011 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to our Current Report on
Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2011)

3.6 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated September 19, 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 23,
2013)

3.7 Correction to amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, dated September 20, 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 23,
2013)

4.1 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations with respect to Series B 4%
Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Certificate of Designation”), as filed on February 17, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 17,
2011)

4.2 Certificate of Amendment to the Series B Certificate of Designation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3(i) to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 24, 2011)

4.3 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series C 8% Convertible
Preferred Stock, as filed on February 17, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 19, 2012)

4.4 Certificate of Amendment to the Series B Certificate of Designation, dated as of October 18, 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 19,
2012)

4.5 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series D 8% Convertible
Preferred Stock, as filed on February 14, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our
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Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 15, 2013)

4.6 Form of Convertible Note due August 29, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 5, 2013).

4.7 Form of Loan and Security Agreement by and among the Company, Alpha Capital Anstalt and
Collateral Services, LLC dated as of September 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 2, 2013).

10.1  *‡Fourth Amendment to the Andalay Solar, Inc. 2006 Incentive Stock Plan, effective March 10, 2010

10.2 *‡Fifth Amendment to the Andalay Solar, Inc. 2006 Incentive Stock Plan, effective July 25, 2013

10.3 Fom of Securities Purchase Agreement by and among Westinghouse Solar, Inc. and the Purchasers
thereto, dated as of August 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on September 5, 2013).

31 * Section 302 Certification of Principal Executive and Financial Officer

32 * Section 906 Certification of Principal Executive and Financial Officer

101.INS * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Instance Document †

101.SCH * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Linkbase Document †

101.CAL * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document †

101.DEF * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document †

101.LAB * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document †

101.PRE * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document †

* filed herewith

‡ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

† Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files in Exhibit 101 hereto are
deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those
sections.
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